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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF &
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015
OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(df
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

COMMISSION FILE NUMBER 0-3295

KOSS CORPORATION

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its arart

Delaware 39-1168275
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation oganization) (I.LR.S. Employer Identification No.)
4129 North Port Washington Avenue, Milwaukee, Wisgin 53212
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)
Registrant’s telephone number, including area cftil) 9645000
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(thefct:
Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered
Common Stock $0.005 par value per share The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(theRct:

NONE
(Title of class)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edBdturities Act. YeBl No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act. YeEl No

Indicate by check mark whether the registranth@s filed all reports required to be filed by Sexti3 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sstobrter period that the Registrant was requirddesuch reports), and (2) has been sutk

to such filing requirements for the past 90 dayssxl No[

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lsstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥atb site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of thispthg) during the preceding 12 months (or

for such shorter period that the registrant wasired to submit and post such files). Yds No [




Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiilers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is aontained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledgeléfinitive proxy or information statements incorgted by reference in Part 11l of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-Kl

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, m-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirmpmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act.

Large accelerated fileEl Accelerated filerOd
Non-accelerated fileid Smaller reporting companixl
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Bxcje Act). Yesl No

The aggregate market value of the common stockihelbnaffiliates of the registrant as of Decentiier2014, was approximatedg,566,60¢
(based on the $1.75 per share closing price o€tmapanys common stock as reported on the NASDAQ Stock ktask December 31, 201

On August 17, 2015 , there were 7,382,706 sharessamuling of the registrant’'s common stock.

Documents Incorporated by Reference

Part Ill of this Form 10-K incorporates by refererinformation from Koss Corporation’s Proxy Stataitrfer its 2015 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders filed with the Commission under Retiota14A within 120 days of the end of the fiscabhy covered by this Form 10-K.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STAT EMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardiimg statements within the meaning of that terrthaPrivate Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995 (the “Act”) (Section 27A of ti&ecurities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the S&earExchange Act of 1934).
Additional written or oral forward-looking statentermay be made by the Company from time to timfdimgs with the Securities Exchange
Commission, press releases, or otherwise. Statsroentained in this Form 10-K that are not histalrfacts are forward-looking statements
made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions oAttie Forward-looking statements may include, betraot limited to, projections of revenue,
income or loss and capital expenditures, statemregeeding future operations, anticipated financiagds, compliance with financial
covenants in loan agreements, plans for acquisitisrsales of assets or businesses, plans retatprgducts or services of the Company,
assessments of materiality, predictions of futwenés, the effects of pending and possible litmatind assumptions relating to the foregoing.
In addition, when used in this Form kQthe words "anticipates,” "believes," "estimatésxpects,” "intends,” "plans," "may," "will," "stuld,"
"forecasts," "predicts," "potential," "continue ficavariations thereof and similar expressions latenided to identify forward-looking
statements.

Forward-looking statements are inherently subjecisks and uncertainties, some of which canngiredicted or quantified based on current
expectations. Consequently, future events andabiggults could differ materially from those serth in, contemplated by, or underlying the
forward-looking statements contained in this FoB¥K], or in other Company filings, press releasestberwise. In addition to the factors
discussed in this Form 10-K, other factors thaidcontribute to or cause such differences inclide are not limited to, developments in any
one or more of the following areas: future fluctoas in economic conditions, the receptivity of somers to new consumer electronics
technologies, the rate and consumer acceptanaawoproduct introductions, competition, pricing, thember and nature of customers and -
product orders, production by third party vendéwseign manufacturing, sourcing, and sales (ineclgdbreign government regulation, trade
and importation concerns), borrowing costs, chamgésx rates, pending or threatened litigation Bnvéstigations, and other risk factors wh
may be detailed from time to time in the Compar8eésurities and Exchange Commission filings.

Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliamemy forward-looking statements contained hemglrich speak only as of the date hereof.
The Company undertakes no obligation to publiclgase the result of any revisions to these forwaoting statements that may be made to
reflect events or circumstances after the datedfi@reto reflect new information.




PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
GENERAL

As used herein unless the context otherwise resjuine term “Company” means Koss Corporation andubsidiary, Koss U.K. Limited. The
Company formed Koss U.K. Limited to comply with @én European Union (EU) requirements. The ensitgan-operating and holds no
assets. The Company was incorporated in Delawst871.

The Company operates in the audio/video industgynemt of the home entertainment industry througlilésign, manufacture and sale of
stereo headphones and related accessory produmesCompany reports its results as a single regpgggment, as the Company’s principal
business line is the design, manufacture and $aleeo headphones and related accessories.

The Companys products are sold through national retailers, QiSributors, international distributors, audpesialty stores, the internet, dir
mail catalogs, regional department store chairssodint department stores, grocery stores, elecgoatailers, military exchanges and prisons
under the “Koss” nhame. The Company also sellsymrtsdto distributors for resale to school systesns, directly to other manufacturers for
inclusion with their own products. The Company hase than 200 domestic dealers and its produetsaried in approximately 12,000
domestic retail outlets and numerous retailersdvade. International markets are served by dorossties representatives and a sales offi
Ireland. The Company utilizes independent distobsiin several foreign countries.

Approximately 85% of the Company’s fiscal year 2@h%es were from stereo headphones used for ligt¢aimusic. The remaining 15% of
the Company's sales were from headphones usednimanications, education settings, and in conjunctigch metal detectors. The products
are not significantly differentiated by their rétsales channel or application with the exceptibproducts sold to school systems and prisons.
There are no other product line differentiatiortseotthan the quality of the sound produced by teree headphone itself, which is highly
subjective.

In fiscal year 2012, the Company launched the &toroducts which would allow the consumer to lidtethe stereo headphones directly from
the World Wide Web using Wi-Fi and began amortraf the related capitalized software. The Compamysequently determined that the
capitalized software needed to be replaced by aanehitecture being developed. As a result, an impnt charge was recorded to expense it
the year ended June 30, 2014, to write off the neimgcapitalized software and the related inventond tooling.

The Company sources complete stereo headphonedanamad to its specifications from various mantdaers in Asia as well as raw
materials used to produce stereo headphonespaitsin Milwaukee, Wisconsin. During the secontf bathe year ended June 30, 2014, and
early in the year ended June 30, 2015, headphoeesaiso produced at a manufacturing facility iarda, Mexico. Management believes that
it has sources of complete stereo headphones anchagerials that are adequate for its needs.

There are no employment or compensation commitnieitgeen the Company and its dealers. The Comipasigeveral independent
manufacturers’ representatives as part of itsitligion efforts. The Company typically signs oreay contracts with these manufacturers’
representatives. The arrangements with foreigmiliigors do not contemplate that the Company ayyscompensation other than any profit
the distributors make upon their sale of the Comjzaproducts.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

John C. Koss is recognized for creating the sthemalphone industry with the first SP/3 stereo hieade in 1958. The Company regularly
applies for registration of its trademarks in maowntries around the world, and over the yearCihapany has had numerous trademarks
registered and patents issued in North AmericattBAmerica, Asia, Europe, Africa, and AustraliaheTCompany currently has 506
trademarks registered in 99 countries around thidvamd 138 patents in 2®untries. The Company has trademarks to prdtedbitand nam
Koss, and its logo on its products. The Compasyg hblds many design patents that protect the enitaual appearance of some of its
products. These trademarks and patents are inmpootaifferentiate the Company from its compestoCertain of the Company’s trademarks
are of material value and importance to the condfiits business. The Company considers protecifdts proprietary developments
important; however, the Company’s business isindhe opinion of management, materially dependgoih any single trademark or patent.
During the year ended June 30, 2015 , the Compankysteps to update and monitor its patents amiénarks to protect its intellectual
property around the world.




SEASONALITY

Although retail sales of consumer electronics hgpéeally been higher during the holiday seasoeresi headphones have also seen increase
purchases throughout the year. Management belitaéshe Company's business and industry segmemuoelonger seasonal as evidenced by
the fact that net sales for the last couple of gdacluding the year ended June 30, 2015 , wanestlequally split between the first and secon
halves of the year. Management believes thatghagsan for this level performance of sales to mtsidnd distributors is related to the fact that
stereo headphones have become replacement iterpasrfable electronic products. Therefore, upgragesreplacements appear to have as
much interest over the course of the year as gifttereo headphones during the holiday season.

WORKING CAPITAL AND BACKLOG

The Company’s working capital needs do not diffgvstantially from those of its competitors in thdustry and generally reflect the need to
carry significant amounts of inventory to meet @ety requirements of its customers. From timarnte} although rarely, the Company may
extend payment terms to its customers for a sppodahotion. For instance, the Company has in #st pffered a 90-120 day payment period
for certain customers, such as computer retaileisoffice supply stores. Based on historical tegmdanagement does not expect these
practices to have a material effect on net saleebincome. The Company’s backlog of orders aiiok 30, 2015, is not significant in
relation to net sales during fiscal year 2015 ajguted fiscal year 2016 net sales.

CUSTOMERS

The Company markets a line of products used byuroess to listen to music, DVDs in vehicles, sougiteb on computer systems, and other
audio related media. The Company distributes thesgucts through retail channels in the U.S. awlépendent distributors throughout the

of the world. The Company markets its productagproximately 12,000 domestic retailers and nuneeretailers worldwide. During fiscal
year2015 , the Company’s sales to its largest singiorner, Tura Scandinavia AB, were approximately T%et sales. In fiscal year 2014 ,
net sales to Tura Scandinavia AB accounted for 0% e Company's net sales. The Company is depéngen its ability to retain a base of
retailers and distributors to sell the Companyig lof products. Loss of retailers and distributoesaans loss of product placement. The
Company has broad distribution across many chammealsding specialty stores, mass merchants, atrehics stores. Management believes
that any loss of revenues would be partially offset corresponding decrease, on a percentage lmesigenses; thereby partially reducing
impact on the Company’s income from operationse five largest customers of the Company (includinga Scandinavia AB) accounted for
approximately 45% and 37% of net sales in fiscary015 and 2014 , respectively.

COMPETITION

The Company focuses on the stereo headphone igdustthe stereo headphone market, the Companyetas directly with approximately

six major competitors, several of which are largd diversified and have greater total assets asmlrees than the Company. The extent to
which retailers and consumers view the Companydsreovative vendor of high quality stereo headghproducts, and a provider of excell

after sales customer service, is the extent tolmtie Company maintains a competitive advantade2 Qompany relies upon its unique sot

quality workmanship, brand identification, engiriagrskills, and customer service to maintain itmpetitive position.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The amount expensed on engineering and reseatehiastrelating to the development of new produmtshe improvement of existing
products was $1,024,885 during fiscal year 201des€ activities were conducted by both Companyoperd and outside consultants. There
were no expenses for research and developmenitiestiduring fiscal year 2015 . The Company expeziacur research and development
costs related to its traditional wired headphoneind fiscal year 2016 as it is planning to introdwseveral new product offerings. Spending ol
the wireless Wi-Fi products has been suspendedsamut expected to resume in fiscal year 2016.




ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Company believes that it has materially conapligth all currently existing federal, state anddbstatutes and regulations regarding
environmental standards and occupational safetiheatth matters to which it is subject. During tiseal years 2015 and 2014 , the amounts
incurred in complying with federal, state and los@ltutes and regulations pertaining to environalestandards and occupational safety and
health laws and regulations did not materially etfftee Company’s operating results or financialditon.

EMPLOYEES

As of June 30, 2015 , the Company employed 54 mdoruemployees, 6 of which were part-time employeHse Company also engages
temporary personnel.

FOREIGN SALES

The Company’s competitive position and risks relgtio its business in foreign markets are compartbthose in the domestic market. In
addition, the governments of foreign nations magelo erect trade barriers on imports. The aveatf additional barriers would reduce the
Company’s net sales and net income. In additiop flaictuations in currency exchange rates coulecafthe pricing of the Company’s
products and divert customers who might chooseitotfase lower-priced, less profitable products, @ndd affect overall demand for the
Company'’s products. For further information, seet B, Item 7 and Note 18 to the consolidatediicial statements.

The Company has a small sales office in Irelargktoice the international export marketplace. Thenpany is not aware of any material ri

in maintaining this office. Loss of this office wid result in a transfer of sales and marketingaasibility. The Company sells its products to
independent distributors in countries and regianside the United States including Europe, the N&éideast, Africa, Asia, Australia, South
America, Latin America, the Caribbean, Canada aeditb. During the last two fiscal years, net saieall Koss products were distributed as
follows:

2015 2014
United States $ 16,779,31 $ 15,514,05
Sweden 3,677,22! 2,310,06.
Canada 498,02t 604,97:
Russia 478,01: 377,13!
United Kingdom 465,64 707,72:
Czech Republic 441,75: 1,309,69
Cyprus 414,78 1,975,73
All other countries 1,475,29. 1,041,50.
Net sales $ 24,230,05 $ 23,840,88

The Company has a manufacturing facility in MilwaakWisconsin. The Company uses contract manufagttacilities in the People’s
Republic of China, Taiwan and South Korea. Sihesé independent suppliers are not located in tited)States, we are at risk of business
interruptions due to natural disasters, war, diseas government intervention through tariffs adé restrictions that are of less concern
domestically. The Company maintains finished gaagentory in its U.S. facility to mitigate thissk. The Companyg goal is to stock finishe
goods inventory at an average of approximately@@Galemand per item. Recovery of a single fadititpugh replacement of a supplier in the
event of a disaster or suspension of supply cakd 120 days. The Company believes that it cagdtbre production of its top ten selling
models (which represent approximately 58% of thenfany’s 2015 net sales) within one year. The Comjmalso at risk if trade restrictions
are introduced on its products based upon courfitoyigin. In addition, the Company may not be abl@ass along most increases in tariffs
and freight charges to the Company’s customerssiwhibuld directly affect profits.




AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Company’s internet website is http://www.kossic The Company makes available free of chargrudir its internet website the
Company'’s annual report on Form 10-K, quarterlyorepon Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K xgrstatements and all amendments to
those reports as soon as reasonably practicaklet#ly are electronically filed with (or furnishex) the Securities and Exchange Commiss
These reports and other information regarding the@any are also available on the SEC'’s internesitelt http://www.sec.gov. The
information on the Company's website is not pathaf or any other report the Company files witHunishes to the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

The Company leases its facility in Milwaukee, Wigsm from Koss Holdings, LLC, which is wholly-ownég the former chairman. On May
15, 2012 , the lease was renewed extending theadgpi to June 30, 2018 . The lease extensiontaiagd the rent at a fixed rate of $380,000
per year and it is being accounted for as an ojpgriase. The Company is responsible for all prgpmaintenance, insurance, taxes, and
other normal expenses related to ownership. Allifees are in good repair and, in the opiniomwdnagement, are suitable and adequate fi
Company’s business purposes.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

As of June 30, 2015 , the Company is involved itiace legal matters against third parties relatethe unauthorized transactions as previousl|
reported. A description of these legal matteractided at Note 20 of the Notes to Consolidateaiiéral Statements included herein, which
description is incorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOC KHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

MARKET INFORMATION ON COMMON STOCK
The Company’s common stock is traded on The NASCB6zk Market under the trading symbol KOSS. Theeee 440record holders of th

Company’s common stock as of August 17, 2015 s Tinmber does not include individual participantsecurity position listings. The
quarterly high and low sale prices of the Compawgisimon stock for the last two fiscal years as waeltlividends declared are shown below.

Per Share
Quarter Ended High Low Dividend
September 30, 2013 $ 53t 48t $ 0.0¢
December 31, 2013 $ 52¢ % 475 $ 0.0¢
March 31, 2014 $ 6.5¢ % 43¢ $ 0.0¢
June 30, 2014 $ 51t % 28¢ $ —
September 30, 2014 $ 345 $ 188 $ =
December 31, 2014 $ 218 % 12¢ $ —
March 31, 2015 $ 29C % 1.8C $ —
June 30, 2015 $ 350 $ 221 % —

The Company began paying dividends for the quarnided September 30, 2002, and paid a dividendafdr guarter since, until the fiscal
quarter ended June 30, 2014. The decision to pégettids and the amount of such dividends are witiénsole discretion of the Board of
Directors, who meet at least quarterly. The deniso pay dividends will depend on the Company’sraping results, financial condition, tax
considerations, alternative uses for such funds odiner factors the Board of Directors deem relgvamd there can be no assurance that
dividends will be paid in the future.

COMPANY REPURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Total Total Number of

Number Average Shares Purchased as Approximate Dollar Value of

of Shares Price Paid Part of Publicly Shares Available under
Period (2015) Purchased per Share Announced Plan (1) Repurchase Plan
April 1-April 30 — % — — 3 2,139,75.
May 1-May 31 — 8 — — 2,139,75:
June 1-June 30 — % — — 2,139,75.

(1) In April 1995, the Board of Directors approvedtock repurchase program authorizing the Compapyrchase from time to time up to
$2,000,000 of its common stock for its own accoudbsequently, the Board of Directors periodichlg approved increases in the amount
authorized for repurchase under the program. Akipé 30, 2015, the Board had authorized the cbpse of an aggregate of $45,500,000 of
common stock under the stock repurchase programhich $43,360,247 had been expended. No purcheesesmade during the years ended
June 30, 2015 and 2014 .




ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS.

The purpose of this discussion and analysis is to enhance the under standing and evaluation of the results of operations, financial position, cash
flows, indebtedness and other key financial information of the Company for fiscal years 2015 and 2014 . Our MD& A should beread in
conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Satements and related Notes included in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Overview

The Company developed stereo headphones in 195B8aankeen a leader in the industry. We markehgtate line of high-fidelity
headphones, wireless Bluetooth® speakers, compatatsets, telecommunications headsets, active caigeling headphones, wireless
headphones and compact disc recordings of AmeB8gamphony Orchestras on the Koss Classics labek Kpsrates as one business segmer

As headphones become more integral to use of rlistgaing devices in the portable electronics markes business volume becomes variable
throughout the year. Changes in volume are morergmt on adding new customers or changes in edormamditions than they are on
seasonality or the traditional holiday shoppingssea

Many of the Company's products could be viewedsasr#ial by the consumer and others are more istaetionary spend. The results of the
Company's operations are therefore susceptiblertewsner confidence and macroeconomic factors. Téeseomic factors have been evident
in results during fiscal year 2015 .

As a result of the unauthorized transactions taiGompany previously reported, the Company hagoamg activity to recover the amounts
lost in the unauthorized transactions. These diegtd/are explained in Note 2 to the Consolidatedftial Statements.

Fiscal Year 2015 Summary

* Net sales increasel.6% to $24,230,056 on volume gains at a Scandinadistributor as well as at US distributors ofisgtdeclines
in certain export markets.

» Gross profit as a percent of sales increaset?36 34.9% due to the impairment charge, relatncapitalized software, tooling and
inventory, incurred during fiscal year 2014 , aeduction in operating costs in fiscal year 2015 .

» Selling, general and administrative spending lwa&r due to a reduction in spending on Wifi proddevelopment, reduction of the
401k match, closure of the sales office in Switaedl, lower outside service fees and the favorabjmct of various cost reduction
efforts.

» Unauthorized transaction related recoveries deeteas sale of seized property winds dt
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Consolidated Results

The following table presents selected consolidéitexhcial data for each of the past two fiscal gear

Consolidated Performance Summary 2015 2014

Net sales $24,230,05! $23,840,88.
Net increase (decrease) % 1.€6% (33.9%
Gross profit (loss) $8,448,56° $(281,819
Gross profit (loss) as % of net sales 34.%% (1.2%
Selling, general and administrative expenses $7,904,73¢ $10,468,70:
Selling, general and administrative expenses a$ fiétsales 32.6% 43.€%
Unauthorized transaction related costs $152,49: $388,28
Unauthorized transaction related recoveries $(121,465 $(1,134,082
Unauthorized transaction related costs (recovenes) $31,027 $(745,795
Income (loss) from operations $512,801 $(10,004,732
Income (loss) from operations as % of net sales 2.1% (42.0%
Other expense (income) $12,81: $(49,589
Income tax provision (benefit) $17,37¢ $(4,401,589
Income tax provision (benefit) as % of income beftaxes 3.5% 44.2 %

2015 Results of Operations Compared with 2014

Net sales fo2015increased primarily due to increases in sales veltordistributors in the U.S. offsetting declineséeveral export markets.
the domestic market, net sales were up approxign&teP65,000 over last year with U.S. distributsi®wing strong increases. The strong ¢
through distributors, e-commerce, original equiptmaanufacturers (OEM), certain mass retailers andagy chains helped to offset the
decreased sales in one mass retailer and theflsates through electronics and drug store chamst year's promotional load-in of products
net of returns to a domestic drug store custormsrited in net sales for the fiscal year ended 3e&014 of approximately $426,000
compared to net sales of $68,000 in the fiscal gaded June 30, 2015 .

The distributor in Scandinavia appears to have ewtkrough their excess inventory and had strosgles in the current year. Management
believes many other customers in Europe are dewlitigthe impact of weak economies, which affedteough and their ability to properly
balance inventories. The distributor in Ukrainetammes to be affected by political unrest in thedion. In addition, sales to our distributor in
the Czech Republic were down considerably as thgysainventory levels following two very strongars ended June 30, 2014.

Gross profit as a percent of sales in 2015 was¥84.@hich was 36.1% higher than 2014 . The incréageoss profit percentage was primarily
due to the impairment charge related to the Wikietlipment and inventory which was charged to cbgbods sold in 2014. In 2014, the
Company also incurred costs for the operations éxilvb that were operating at less than optimalltegiae to the lower sales levels, especially
for products in export markets.

The Company took impairment charges for capitaleaftivare, inventory and related items during feedl year ended 2014. It was
determined that the capitalized software needédxt tieeplaced by a new architecture as it was unlitkedt products would be marketed and ¢
using the architecture as currently configuredakssult, the capitalized software, inventory aalihg were charged to expense. The
Company may still develop the revised softwarefptat, but has temporarily suspended this reseandhdavelopment effort until the base
business is restored to more profitable levelstvgot development expenditures incurred since Dbeeidil, 2013 were expensed as incurrec
and future software development expenditures wilekpensed as incurred as well.

Gross profit as a percent of sales was higherléstryear adjusted for the impairment charge. Tigkdr gross profit margin was primarily the
result of costs for manufacturing operations in Mexn fiscal 2014. During fiscal year 2014, thengmany commenced manufacturing
operations in Juarez, Mexico that focused on gepedducts aimed at our export markets. The laggeation in export sales did not allow the
Company to experience an adequate return on iestment in the Mexican
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production facility. As a result, we have tempdgasiuspended production at the facility. The Comypiacurred approximately $1,523,000 of
expense in fiscal year 2014 for the Mexican operati In fiscal 2015, the Mexican operations expgmgere approximately $150,000.

Selling, general and administrative expenses wawver than the prior fiscal year. The Company redwsgending on the development of the
STRIVA product line resulting in a decrease of apmately $941,000 for the fiscal year ended June2815 . Legal fees and outside service
fees declined by approximately $425,000 due to gbain the scope of work as well as price discodrite 401(k) match was lower by
approximately $340,000 resulting from a reducedcim@ercentage during the fiscal year ended Jun2(H . Endorsement fees decreased b
approximately $180,000. The Company did not paréts in the Consumer Electronics Show (CES) irafi2015 which reduced expenses by
approximately $167,000. The sales office in Switzedt was closed in fiscal year 2014, and fiscat @845 expenses were lower by
approximately $131,000. Sales for Europe are nqpartied from an office in Ireland. Sales for Asield atin America are supported by U.S.-
based personnel.

The Company believes that most of the proceeds &sset forfeitures have been received as of Jun203® . Proceeds from asset forfeitures
are expected to be minimal in the fiscal year egpditne 30, 2016.

The income from operations increased in 2015 fréi2primarily due to the impairment charge recorite2014, suspending operations in
Mexico and cost reductions described above.

In 2014 , the Company decreased the interest ibharued related to its tax reporting of the unaxitled transactions by $73,725 . The
Company reversed accrued interest related to #heetarns as they were filed and based upon thiatiqn of the statute of limitations for
certain returns. These impacts are described fuiheote 12 of the Notes to the Consolidated FamrStatements.

The effective income tax rate in 2015 was 3.5% Wiisccomprised of the U.S. federal statutory rdt84846, the effect of state income taxes,
and the $175,000 decrease in unrecognized taxiberefs anticipated that the effective income tate will be approximately 37% in 2016 ,
which reflects the 35% federal rate and a morecglstate tax rate.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

The Company's management uses the non-GAAP measoirefrmodified earnings before interest, taxepyeleation and amortization
("EBITDA") to track performance from operations. HBA from operations, as calculated below, is ohthe amended covenants in the
Company's credit agreement with JPMorgan Chase ,Bak This measurement excludes unusual and nourieag expenses and recoveries
related to the unauthorized transactions and thegehto expense for the impairment of capitalizsftivare, inventory and related items. The
following table reconciles net income (loss) foe theriods presented (GAAP financial measure) tec@AAP EBITDA from operations.

2015 2014

Net income (loss) $ 482,61 $ (5,553,55)
Interest expense (income) 12,81 (49,589
Income tax provision (benefit) 17,37¢ (4,401,58)
Unauthorized transaction related costs (recovenies) 31,023 (745,79)
Depreciation of equipment and leasehold improvement 559,63 734,66
Amortization of product software development expmds — 364,53¢
Impairment of capitalized software, inventory artated items — 6,305,94
Stock-based compensation expense 630,53¢ 684,55:

EBITDA from operations $ 1,733,990 § (2,660,82)

Non-GAAP EBITDA from operations for the fiscal yeamsded June 30, 2015 and 2014 , was 7.2% and (11oP)ft sales, respectively. This
increase reflects the cost reductions achievedigireuspending operations in Mexico, suspendingldpment of the STRIVA product line
and the other reductions in selling, general amdiaidtrative spending described above.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flows

The following table summarizes our cash flows froperating, investing and financing activities fack of the past two fiscal years:

2015 2014
Total cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities $ (340,590 $ 3,5691,43:
Investing activities (558,559 (779,809
Financing activities — (1,771,849
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalent $ (899,149 ¢ 1,039,77:

Operating Activities

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 , thefzamy paid approximately $1.5 million for returr@@duct received in the fiscal year endec
June 30, 2014, as the customer did not buy seffiaiew products to offset these returns. In agidithe Company issued volume rebates for
export customers and payments related to the ssigpeof operations in Mexico. These items wereiglytoffset by receiving approximately
$1.0 million of federal tax refunds. During thecs year ended June 30, 2014 , cash provided hyatpes was primarily due to receiving the
proceeds of the settlement of the lawsuit agaivessCompany's former auditors. Pursuant to theesetht, in July 2013, the Company received
gross proceeds of $8,500,000, or $6,380,000 nessiiciated legal fees.

I nvesting Activities

Cash used in investing activities was lower for®2@% the Company decreased spending on toolingguigment compared to 2014 . In 2016
the Company has budgeted $600,000 for tooling easkhold improvements. The Company expects tagensufficient funds through
operations to fund these expenditures.

Financing Activities

The payment of quarterly dividends resulted intause of cash in financing activities for the fisgear ended June 30, 2014 . The Company

has suspended payments of quarterly dividends apitations and earnings improve. The Companydeitrmine whether to declare and the
amount of any future dividends based upon its assest of the Company’s financial condition and ilifiy, improvement in sales as a whole

and in particular in the export markets, an inoedageneration of cash from operations and the Coyip@arnings. As of June 30, 2015, the

Company had no outstanding borrowings on its bamkdf credit facility.

There were no purchases of common stock in 20P®d4 under the stock repurchase program. No stpt&ns were exercised in 2015 or
2014 .

Liquidity

In addition to capital expenditures for tooling andestment in software development, the Compasyititerest payments when it uses its line
of credit facility. The Company believes that cgsmerated from operations, together with borrowangglable under its credit facility, should
provide it with adequate liquidity to meet opergtimequirements, debt service requirements, andataipenditures. Management is focusing
on increasing sales especially in the export marketiucing the amount of capital expendituresemsing the generation of cash from
operations, and improving the Company’s overalhems to help improve the Company’s liquidity. TBempany regularly evaluates new
product offerings, inventory levels and capital exgitures to ensure that it is effectively allongtresources in line with current market
conditions. Whether there is adequate liquidityesume paying quarterly dividends, and if so, thewant per share of such dividends, will be
dependent on certain factors, including the Comijsdimyancial condition and liquidity, an improventém sales as a whole and in particular in
the export markets, an increased generation offtashoperations and the Company's overall earnings

13




Credit Facility

On May 12, 2010, the Company entered into a seatnestit facility ("Credit Agreement") with JPMorg&hase Bank, N.A. (“Lender”). The
Credit Agreement provided for an $8,000,000 revasecured credit facility and for letters of ctddr the benefit of the Company of up to a
sublimit of $2,000,000 . On July 24, 2013, thedirdgreement was amended to extend the expiratiduly 31, 2015. On July 23, 2014, the
Credit Agreement was amended to reduce the fatdi$§s,000,000 and to amend certain financial camen On July 29, 2015, the Credit
Agreement was amended to extend the expirationlyo31, 2016, and to amend certain financial comenal he Company and the Lender alsc
entered into a Pledge and Security Agreement ddtsd12, 2010 under which the Company granted theleea security interest in
substantially all of the Company’s assets in cotioeavith the Company’s obligations under the Crédjreement. The Company is currently
in compliance with all covenants related to thed@rAgreement. As of June 30, 2015 and 2014 , theme no outstanding borrowings on the
facility.

Stock Repurchase Program

In April 1995, the Board of Directors approved acktrepurchase program authorizing the Companytohase from time to time up to
$2,000,000 of its common stock for its own accoudtbsequently, the Board of Directors periodichlg approved increases of between
$1,000,000 to $5,000,000 in the stock repurchasgram. As of June 30, 2015 , the most recentlyaymgul increase was for additional
purchases of $2,000,000 , which occurred in Oct@bés6, for an aggregate maximum of $45,500,000nt0¢h $43,360,247 had been
expended through June 30, 2015 . The Companydsteneffect all stock purchases either on the oparket or through privately negotiated
transactions and intends to finance all stock pasehk through its own cash flow or by borrowingdech purchases.

There were no stock repurchases under the progrdiscal years 2015 and 2014 . As of June 30, 2@& Board of Directors has authorized
the repurchase by the Company of up to $2,139,7%3mpany common stock at the discretion of theefOEkecutive Officer of the
Company. Future stock purchases under this programdependent on management’'s assessment ofwakies market price.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company has no off-balance sheet arrangem#h@stban the lease for the facility in Milwauk&gisconsin. The Company leases the
facility from Koss Holdings, LLC, which is whollywened by former chairman. On May 15, 2012 , thedeaas renewed for a period of five
years, endinJune 30, 2018 , and is being accounted for as aratipg lease. The lease extension maintainerktiteat a fixed rate of
$380,000 per year. The Company is responsiblalf@roperty maintenance, insurance, taxes and oitrenal expenses related to ownership.
The facility is in good repair and, in the opiniohmanagement, is suitable and adequate for thep@ows business purposes.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of financial conditmal results of operations is based upon our Cateteli Financial Statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with accounting piegigenerally accepted in the United States. Tépapation of these Consolidated Finar
Statements requires us to make estimates and judgiiat affect the reported amounts of assetslitias, revenues and expenses, and relate
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiese &intinually evaluate our estimates and judgmémtijding those related to doubtful
accounts, product returns, excess inventories,antes, impairment of long-lived assets, deferrmeuensation, income taxes and other
contingencies. We base our estimates on histagiqagrience and assumptions that we believe tedmonable under the

circumstances. Actual results may differ from thestimates.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when all of thevatlg criteria are met: persuasive evidence ofraangement exists; shipment and
delivery have occurred; the seller’s price to thgds is fixed and determinable; and collectibilgyreasonably assured. When these criteria al
generally satisfied, the Company recognizes revefiinie Company also offers certain customers tite to return products that do not meet
the standards agreed with the customer. The Coyngatinuously monitors such product returns anthoaguarantee that they will continue
to experience the same return rates that they évgyerienced in the past. Any significant increiaggroduct quality failure rates and the
resulting credit returns could have a material astvémpact on the Company’s operating resultsHemteriod or periods in which such returns
materialize.
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The Company provides for certain sales incentividsge Company records a provision for estimatedritices based upon the incentives offe
to customers on product related sales in the samedoas the related revenues are recorded. Tdwsfon is recorded as a reduction of sales.
The Company also records a provision for estimasdes returns and allowances on product related gathe same period as the related
revenues are recorded. These estimates are basestarical sales returns, analysis of credit melata and other known factors. If the
historical data the Company uses to calculate tesSmates does not properly reflect future retuadgustments may be required in future
periods.

Accounts Receivable

The Company performs ongoing credit evaluationssafustomers and adjusts credit limits based ygayment history and the customer’s
current credit worthiness, as determined by theéevewf the customer’s current credit informationhe Company continuously monitors
collections and payments from customers and maistaiprovision for estimated credit losses based tipe Company’s historical experience
and any specific customer collection issues tha¢ liween identified. Accounts receivable are stattdf an allowance for doubtful accounts.
The allowance is calculated based upon the Compawdluation of specific customer accounts whezebmpany has information that the
customer may have an inability to meet its finaheokdigations. In these cases, management usgalgsent, based on the best available fact
and circumstances and records a specific resentbdbcustomer against amounts due to reducestfevable to the amount that is expecte
be collected. These specific reserves are re-atedland adjusted as additional information isiveckthat impacts the amount reserved.
However, the ultimate collectibility of the unseedreceivable is dependent upon the financial ¢immdof an individual customer, which col
change rapidly and without warning.

Inventories

The Company values its inventories at the lowerost or market. Cost is determined using theitgdirst-out (“LIFO”) method. As of

June 30, 2015 and 2014 , 100% of the Company’sitiove was valued using LIFO. Valuing inventorie¢ghe lower of cost or market requires
the use of estimates and judgment. The Companync@s to use the same techniques to value inweathave been used in the past. Our
customers may cancel their orders or change pueoh@ames. This, or certain additional actionsnarket developments, could create exces:
inventory levels, which would impact the valuatimfiour inventories. Any actions taken by our custes or market developments that could
impact the value of our inventory are considere@nvtietermining the lower of cost or market valusioThe Company regularly reviews
inventory quantities on hand and records a pronifio excess and obsolete inventory based primariljistorical and projected usage and
production requirements. If the Company is noedblachieve its expectations of the net realizabalee of the inventory at its current value,
the Company would have to adjust its reserves daugly.

Product Software Development Costs

Product software development costs consist of éostsred by outside parties for the developmergadfware embedded in or used to suppor
new products. These assets have been evaluatéeduce that the capitalized costs do not exceeddtimated net realizable value of the
related products. As part of the impairment arig)yge use an undiscounted cash flow model basex$timated net sales and gross profit t
derived in the future from the specific product aider estimated costs directly related to the pcad Amortization was started in fiscal year
2012 with introduction of the first products at #wd of April 2012. No amortization was recordeipto the introduction of the new

products.

Inherent in the operating results forecasts araiceassumptions regarding revenue growth rategegted future costs, costs to complete and
projected long-term growth rates. In the year entime 30, 2014, the Company determined that thitatiaed software needed to be replacec
by a new architecture under development. As a tiegthgl remaining value of the capitalized softwaes expensed during the year ended June
30, 2014.

Product Warranty Obligations
Our products carry a lifetime warranty. We recacdruals for potential warranty claims based oargioduct returns experience. Warranty
costs are accrued at the time revenue is recognizkdse warranty costs are based upon managemsegssment of past claims and current

experience. However, actual claims could be highéower than amounts estimated, as the amounvalugé of warranty claims are subject to
variation as a result of many factors that canegpiedicted with certainty.
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Income Taxes

We estimate a provision for income taxes basedhertfective tax rate expected to be applicabléterfull fiscal year. If the actual results
different from these estimates, adjustments teeffextive tax rate may be required in the periochsdetermination is made. Additionally,
discrete items are treated separately from thetfferate analysis and are recorded separateiy &@scome tax provision or benefit at the time
they are recognized.

Deferred income taxes are accounted for underdbet and liability method whereby deferred incomeassets and liabilities are recognized
for the future tax consequences attributable tiedifices between the financial statement carryinguats of existing assets and liabilities and
their respective tax bases. Deferred income tagtasnd liabilities are measured using statutorydtes. Deferred income tax provisions are
based on changes in the deferred tax assets &ilitiéa from period to period. Additionally, wenalyze our ability to recognize the net
deferred income tax assets created in each jutiedim which we operate to determine if valuatallowances are necessary based on the
“more likely than not” criteria.

New Accounting Pronouncements

Applicable new accounting pronouncements are s#t tonder Item 15 of this annual report and areriporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

See the Consolidated Financial Statements attduredo.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure controls and procedures (as defineduiedsk13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) of the SecuritiehBrge Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”) are designed to ensure that (19rimation required to be disclosed in reports fiedubmitted under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported vithitime periods specified in SEC rules and foramst (2) that such information is
accumulated and communicated to management, imgute principal executive officer and principaldncial officer, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosures. Thexérdirerent limitations to the effectiveness of apgtem of disclosure controls and procedure:
including the possibility of human error and theeamvention or overriding of controls and proceduréccordingly, even effective disclosure
controls and procedures can only provide reasorederance of achieving their control objectives.

The Company’s management, including the Compankisf@&xecutive Officer and Chief Financial Officewaluated the effectiveness of the
design and operation of the Company'’s disclosurgrots and procedures as of June 30, 2015 . Thep@oy’'s management has concluded
that the Company’s disclosure controls and proceslas of June 30, 2015 were effective.

Managements Annual Report on Internal Controls over FinancialReporting .

The Company’s management, including its Chief ExgewOfficer and Chief Financial Officer, is resilole for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reporifag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15(d)) and designing such internal
controls to provide reasonable assurances regatigéngeliability of financial reporting and the peration of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with accounting principtsegally accepted in the United States of Ameritlaere are inherent limitations to the
effectiveness of any system of internal controlrdireancial reporting, including the possibility béiman error or the circumvention or
overriding of controls and procedures. Accordinglyen effective internal control over financial ogfing can only provide reasonable
assurance of achieving its control objectives.

Management conducted its evaluation of the effectss of its internal control over financial repatbased on the framework in the “1992
Internal Control-Integrated Framework,” the 2006t&rnal Control Over Financial Reporting - GuidafmreSmaller Public Companies," and
the "2013 COSO Framework & SOX Compliance," alues$ by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizationtt®fTreadway Commission
(“COSO0”). In connection with this evaluation, thevere no changes in the Company's internal cootref financial reporting (as such term is
defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Brde Act) during the quarter ended June 30, 20dtchidve materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Comparigternal control over financial reporting. Bagedthis evaluation, management has
concluded that the Company’s internal control dir@ncial reporting as of June 30, 2015 was effecti
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PART 1lI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE.

This information is incorporated by reference te ffections entitled "Information as to the Nomirie#sxecutive Officers," "Section 16(a)
Beneficial Reporting Compliance," "Code of Ethiesid "Board Committees - Audit Committee” from K& srporation’s Proxy Statement for
its 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders filed wittle Commission under Regulation 14A within 120 dafythe end of the fiscal year covered
by this Form 10-K. The Company adopted a codela€gtwhich is a "code of ethics" as defined byligpble rules of the SEC, which is
applicable to its directors, officers and employdéwe code of ethics is publicly available on thenpany's website at
www.koss.com/en/about/history. If the Company makms substantive amendments to the code of ethigsats any waiver, including any
implicit waiver, from a provision of the code ts frincipal executive officer, principal financaficer, principal accounting officer or
controller or persons performing similar functiotit'e Company will disclose the nature of the amesrnor waiver on that website or in a
report on Form 8-K.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

This information is incorporated by reference te siections entitled "Summary Compensation Tab@utStanding Equity Awards at Fiscal
Year End," "Director Compensation,” and "Board Cdtteas - Compensation Committee” from Koss Corponé Proxy Statement for its
2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders filed with Bemmission under Regulation 14A within 120 daythefend of the fiscal year covered by
this Form 10-K.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

This information is incorporated by reference te siections entitled "Beneficial Ownership of Comp&ecurities” and "Equity Compensation
Plan Information” from Koss Corporation’s Proxy tetaent for its 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockhold@esd with the Commission under
Regulation 14A within 120 days of the end of tleeéil year covered by this Form 10-K.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

This information is incorporated by reference te siections entitled "Independence of the Boardgatll Committees" and "Related Party
Transactions" from Koss Corporation’s Proxy Statenfer its 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders dileith the Commission under
Regulation 14A within 120 days of the end of theeéil year covered by this Form 10-K.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

This information is incorporated by reference te siections entitled "Fees and Services" and "ADdihmittee Pre-Approval Policies and

Procedures" from Koss Corporation’s Proxy Staterfamits 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders fileith the Commission under
Regulation 14A within 120 days of the end of tleeéil year covered by this Form 10-K.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following documents are filed as part of tiepart:

1. Consolidated Financial Statements
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfiing 20
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the YEaded June 30, 2015 and 2014 21
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2013CHd 22
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEnded June 30, 2015 and 2014 23
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ EquitytlierYears Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 24
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 25

2. Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules have been omitted because the intiwma not applicable, is not material or becathgeinformation required is
included in the consolidated financial statementhe notes thereto.

3. Exhibits Filed

See Exhibit Index attached hereto.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINKERM

To the Board of Directors
Koss Corporation and Subsidiary
Milwaukee, Wisconsin

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Koss Corporation and Subsidiary (dregany) as of June 30, 2015 and
2014, and the related consolidated statementserfipns, stockholders' equity, and cash flowsHeryears then ended. These consolidated
financial statements are the responsibility ofchmpany's management. Our responsibility is toesgan opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamiqUnited States). Those standard:
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbtaasonable assurance about whether the congadlitiaincial statements are free of mat
misstatement. The company is not required to hamewere we engaged to perform, an audit of itsrivdl control over financial reporting. C
audits included consideration of its internal cohaiver financial reporting as a basis for desigramdit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgssmopinion on the effectiveness of the companigsnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An autlifudes examining, on a test basis, evidence stippdhe amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. An audit alstuies assessing the accounting principles usedigndicant estimates made by
management as well as evaluating the overall catedet financial statement presentation. We belibaeour audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegeferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of Koss

Corporation and Subsidiary as of June 30, 201528d and the results of their operations and das¥sffor the years then ended, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accountnigciples.

/sl Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
Milwaukee, Wisconsin

August 27, 2015
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KOSS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended June 30,

Net sales

Cost of goods sold

Impairment of capitalized software, inventory artated items
Gross profit (loss)

Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Unauthorized transaction related costs (recovenn)
Total operating expenses

Income (loss) from operations

Other expense (income):
Interest expense (income)

Income (loss) before income tax provision (benefit)
Income tax provision (benefit)

Net income (loss)

Income (loss) per common share:
Basic

Diluted

Dividends declared per common share

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.

2015 2014

24,230,05 $ 23,840,88
15,781,48 17,816,75
— 6,305,94
8,448,56 (281,819
7,904,73 10,468,70
31,02 (745,79%)
7,935,761 9,722,91:
512,80 (10,004,73)
12,81 (49,589
499,98t (9,955,14)
17,37¢ (4,401,58)
482,61: $  (5,553,55)
007 $ (0.75)

007 $ (0.75)

— % 0.1€




KOSS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of June 30, 2015 2014
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,000,26! 1,899,41.
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtfelbants of $26,052 and
$20,501, respectively 2,823,98 3,160,88
Inventories 7,182,441 7,054,93:
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 348,04 148,20(
Income taxes receivable 205,53: 1,109,271
Deferred income taxes 2,045,311 2,576,02.
Total current assets 13,605,57 15,948,72
Equipment and leasehold improvements, net 1,592,52 1,840,49.
Other assets:
Deferred income taxes 1,869,25. 1,623,32!
Cash surrender value of life insurance 5,359,66: 4,977,40!
Total other assets 7,228,911 6,600,73!
Total assets 22,427,01 24,389,95
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 2,172,25. 2,464,75!
Accrued liabilities 1,575,02 3,853,47.
Income taxes payable — 175,00(
Total current liabilities 3,747,28 6,493,22!
Long-term liabilities:
Deferred compensation 2,107,48 2,320,09.
Other liabilities 219,22 336,77.
Total long-term liabilities 2,326,71. 2,656,86:
Total liabilities 6,073,99. 9,150,09.
Stockholders' equity:
Common stock, $0.005 par value, authorized 20,@@0sbares; issued and
outstanding 7,382,706 shares 36,91« 36,91«
Paid in capital 4,626,78. 3,996,24.
Retained earnings 11,689,32 11,206,71
Total stockholders' equity 16,353,01 15,239,86
22,427,01 24,389,95

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part obthessolidated financial statements.
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KOSS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended June 30,
Operating activities:
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to mehc(used in)
provided by operating activities:
Provision for (recoveries of previously written Joffoubtful accounts
Loss on disposals of fixed assets
Impairment of capitalized software, inventory arthted items
Depreciation of equipment and leasehold improvement
Amortization of product software development expemds
Stock-based compensation expense
Deferred income taxes
Change in cash surrender value of life insurance
Deferred compensation
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities (ste 16)
Cash (used in) provided by operating activities

Investing activities:
Life insurance premiums paid
Purchase of equipment and leasehold improvements
Cash (used in) investing activities

Financing activities:
Dividends paid to stockholders
Cash (used in) financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equisalent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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2015 2014
$ 48261 $  (5553,55)
25,72t (182,02()

14,95: —

— 6,305,94

559,63: 734,66

— 364,53¢

630,53 684,55

284,78: (2,608,36)
(150,312 (120,62)
(62,609 (210,20))
(2,125,91) 4,176,50;
(340,59) 3,591,43;
(231,942 (243,94()
(326,61)) (535,869)
(558,55%) (779,809

— (1,771,84)

— (1,771,84)

(899,141 1,039,77!
1,899,41 859,63

$ 100026 $  1,89941




KOSS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common Stock Paid in Retained
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Total

Balance, July 1, 2013 7,382,701 $ 36,91 $ 3,263,600 $ 18,089,15 $ 21,389,67.

Net loss — — — (5,553,55) (5,553,55)

Dividends declared — — — (1,328,88) (1,328,88)

Stock-based compensation expense — — 684,55: — 684,55:

Income tax benefit from dividends paid to

employee stock ownership plan — — 48,08( — 48,08(
Balance, June 30, 2014 7,382,701 $ 36,91« $ 3,996,24 $ 11,206,71 $ 15,239,86

Net income — — — 482,61 482,61

Stock-based compensation expense — — 630,53¢ — 630,53¢
Balance, June 30, 2015 7,382,700 $ 36,91« $ 4,626,78 $ 11,689,32 $ 16,353,01

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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KOSS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT?

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NATURE OF BUSINESS— Koss Corporation (“Koss”), a Delaware corporatiand its 100% -owned subsidiary (collectively the
“Company”), reports its finances as a single rapgrsegment, as the Company’s principal businessiéi the design, manufacture and sale of
stereo headphones and related accessories. Thga@gieases its plant and office in Milwaukee, Wiskin. The domestic market is served
by domestic sales representatives and independemifacturers' representatives working directly wihtain retailers, distributors, and
original equipment manufacturers. Internationatkets are served by domestic sales representanea sales office in Ireland which utilizes
independent distributors in several foreign coestriThe Company has one subsidiary, Koss U.K.teoinf'Koss UK"), which was formed to
comply with certain European Union (EU) requirenseitoss U.K. is non-operating and holds no assets.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION — The consolidated financi&htements include the accounts of Koss and litsidiary, Koss UK, which is a
100% -owned subsidiary. All significant intercomgaaccounts and transactions have been eliminated.

REVENUE RECOGNITION — The Company recognizes rewewhen all of the following criteria are met: pasive evidence of an
arrangement exists; shipment and delivery haveroeduthe selles price to the buyer is fixed and determinable; esltbctibility is reasonab
assured. When these criteria are generally sadisfihe Company recognizes revenue. The Companyo#fers certain customers the right to
return products that do not meet the standardsdgméh the customer. The Company continuouslyitoosmisuch product returns and cannot
guarantee that they will continue to experiencestirae return rates that they have experienceceipdkt. Any significant increase in product
quality failure rates and the resulting credit ratucould have a material adverse impact on thep@osis operating results for the period or
periods in which such returns materialize.

The Company provides for certain sales incentividsge Company records a provision for estimatedritices based upon the incentives offe
to customers on product related sales in the samedoas the related revenues are recorded. Tdwspon is recorded as a reduction of sales.
The Company also records a provision for estimasdes returns and allowances on product related gathe same period as the related
revenues are recorded. These estimates are basestarical sales returns, analysis of credit melata and other known factors. If the
historical data the Company uses to calculate tesSmates does not properly reflect future retuadgustments may be required in future
periods.

SHIPPING AND HANDLING FEES AND COSTS — Shipping ahdndling costs charged to customers have beendiedlin net sales.
Shipping and handling costs incurred by the Comgeawe been included in cost of goods sold.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT — Research and developnaatitvities charged to operations as a componesglihg, general and
administrative expenses in the accompanying Catesteld Statements of Operations amounted to $ B824n fiscal year 2014 . There were
no research and development activities chargegéoations in fiscal year 2015 .

ADVERTISING COSTS — Advertising costs included wittselling, general and administrative expensealhéraccompanying Consolidated
Statements of Operations were $ 154,505 in 201%&21dl,196 in 2014 . Such costs are expensedagéud.

INCOME TAXES — The Company operates as a C Corpmratnder the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, aqdate(the “Code”). Amounts
provided for income tax expense are based on indepated for financial statement purposes andamecessarily represent amounts
currently payable under tax laws. Deferred incoaxeassets and liabilities are computed annuallyliifterences between the financial
statements and tax bases of assets and liabiligegsvill result in taxable or deductible amoumtghe future based on enacted tax laws and
applicable to the periods in which the differenass expected to affect taxable income. As changtaxilaws or rates are enacted, deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are adjustediutiinahe provision for income taxes. The differenedste principally to different methods used
for depreciation and amortization for income taxgmses, net operating losses, capitalization reqénts of the Code, allowances for doubtfu
accounts, stock-based compensation, warranty resesmd other income tax related carryforwardsuatadn allowances are established when
necessary to reduce deferred income tax assdie tmtount expected to be realized.

INCOME (LOSS) PER COMMON AND COMMON STOCK EQUIVALENSHARE — Income (loss) per common and common stock
equivalent share is calculated under the provisadri®pic 260 in the Accounting Standards Codifimat
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("ASC") which provides for calculation of “basichd “diluted” income (loss) per share. Basic incdioss) per common and common stock
equivalent share includes no dilution and is coragity dividing net income by the weighted averagamon shares outstanding for the
period. Diluted income (loss) per common and comistock equivalent share reflects the potentiaftidih of securities that could share in the
earnings of an entity. See Note 13 for addition&drimation on income (loss) per common and comnocksequivalent share.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — The Company considerspasitory accounts and investments with a matatithe date of acquisition
and expected usage of three months or less todbearal cash equivalents. The Company maintaicasdts on deposit at a commercial bank
located in the United States of America. The Camypgzeriodically has cash balances in excess ofé@asamounts. The Company has not
experienced and does not expect to incur any lagséisese deposits.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE — Accounts receivable consistainsecured trade receivables due from customfensallowance for doubtful
accounts is recorded for significant past due watBe balances based on a review of the past doeahd general economic conditions. See
Note 3 for additional information on accounts receivable

INVENTORIES — The Company'’s inventory is valuedtzs lower of last-in, first-out (“LIFO”) cost or miget. The carrying value of
inventory is reviewed for impairment on at leagfuarterly basis or more frequently if warranted tiuehanges in market conditions. See Note
5 for additional information on inventory.

EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS — Equipment diieasehold improvements are stated at cost. Diegien and
amortization is calculated using the straight-limethod over the estimated useful lives of the retheassets. Leasehold improvements are
amortized using the straight-line method over tharter of the lease term or the estimated usdfibli the asset. Major expenditures for
property and equipment and significant renewalcaptalized. Maintenance, repairs and minor rexigare expensed as incurred. When
assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, tlosiis and related accumulated depreciation andtiaatawn are removed from the accounts anc
any resulting gains or losses are included in djmers.

LIFE INSURANCE POLICIES — Life insurance policieresstated at cash surrender value or at the antibeir@ompany would receive in the
case of split-dollar arrangements. Increasessh sarrender value are included in selling, gersrdladministrative expenses in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations, which isrg/tiee annual premiums are recorded.

PRODUCT WARRANTY OBLIGATIONS — Estimated future wanty costs related to products are charged toaf@ggtods sold during the
period the related revenue is recognized. The mtodarranty liability reflects the Company’s bestimate of probable obligations under those
warranties. See Note 10 for additional informationproduct warranty obligations.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION — The Company’s deferred cengation liabilities are for a current and form#icer and are calculated
based on compensation, years of service and nigraliles. The related expense is calculated ubimget present value of the expected
payments and is included in selling, general andinidtrative expenses in the Consolidated StatesnefnDperations. See Note 11 for
additional information on deferred compensation.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — Cash equivates, accounts receivable and accounts payable dpmate fair value based
on the short maturity of these instruments.

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS — The Company evates the recoverability of the carrying amountoofglived assets whenev
events or changes in circumstances indicate tieatdtrying amount of an asset may not be fullyvecable. The Company evaluates the
recoverability of equipment and leasehold improvets@nnually or more frequently if events or ciratamces indicate that an asset might be
impaired. If an asset is considered to be impaiteslimpairment to be recognized is measuredeartiount by which the carrying amount of
the asset exceeds its fair value. Assets to lposiésl of are reported at the lower of the carrgimgunt or fair value less cost to sell.
Management determines fair value using a undisealfutture cash flow analysis or other acceptedataln techniques. The Company
recorded an impairment of capitalized softwarehmyear ended June 30, 2014 , detailed in Notdalimpairments of the Company's long-
lived assets were recorded in the year ended Juriz035 .

LEGAL COSTS — All legal costs related to litigatiane charged to operations as incurred, excepesethts, which are expensed when a
claim is probable and can be estimated. Recovefilegjal costs are recorded when the amount anasito be paid are confirmed by the
insurance company. Proceeds from the settlemdagaf disputes are recorded in income when theuatsare determinable and the
collection is certain.
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STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION — The Company has a stbaked employee compensation plan, which is descrtmre fully in Note

14 . The Company accounts for stock-based compensa accordance with ASC 718 "Compensation €tGompensation”. Under the fair
value recognition provisions of this statementysizased compensation cost is measured at thedatnbased on the fair value of the award
and is recognized as expense over the vestingdperio

USE OF ESTIMATES — The preparation of financialtstaents in conformity with accounting principlesgeally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make attinand assumptions that affect the reported aimofiassets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiehatdate of the consolidated financial statememtistae reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual testduld differ from those estimates.

RECLASSIFICATIONS — Certain amounts previously repd have been reclassified to conform to the ctipessentation.
2. UNAUTHORIZED TRANSACTION RELATED C8TS AND RECOVERIES

In December 2009, the Company learned of significaauthorized transactions as previously reporidte Company has ongoing costs and
recoveries associated with the unauthorized traiosec For the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2@i#4cpsts incurred were for legal fees
related to claims initiated against third partiesg Note 20 ). The Company has received variouveeies related to the unauthorized
transactions which are summarized below. The Cosnpélhcontinue to incur legal fees for the claimngiated against third parties. There
have been other recoveries of the assets previousigd and forfeited by the former Vice Presiddrftinance. The remaining amounts to be
received from the assets forfeited are not expectée significant. For the years ended June 305 2(d 2014 , the costs and recoveries were
as follows:

2015 2014
Legal fees incurred $ 152,49: $ 388,28
Proceeds from asset forfeitures (121,465 (1,134,08)
Unauthorized transaction related costs (recovene) $ 31,020 $ (745,79

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable includes unsecured trade rablgg due from customers. The Company performt@ealuations of its customers and
does not require collateral to establish an accmagivable. The Company's largest customer wasash in advance terms aslohe 30, 201
and 2014 , respectively.

The Company evaluates collectibility of accountsereable based on a number of factors. Accounsivable are considered to be past due i
unpaid one day after their due date. An allowdnceloubtful accounts is recorded for past dueivedde balances based on a review of the
past due item and general economic conditions. Gdrapany writes off accounts receivable when thegome uncollectible. The Company
recovered $112,417 of previously written-off accsureceivable during fiscal 2014 . There wereewoveries during fiscal 2015. Changes in
the allowance for doubtful accounts were as follows

Balance, Provision
Fiscal Year Ended beginning charged to Amounts Balance,
June 30, of year expense written-off end of year
2015 $ 20,50: 25,72¢ (20,179 $ 26,05
2014 $ 43,40 (182,02() 159,11t $ 20,50:

The vast majority of international customers, algsdf Canada, purchase products on a cash agamstnénts or cash in advance basis.
Approximately 5% and 14% of the Company's trad®@ants receivable at June 30, 2015 and 2014 , weeggh receivables denominated in
U.S. dollars.
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4, IMPAIRMENT OF CAPITALIZED SOFTWARE, INVENTORY AND ELATED ITEMS

The Company recorded an impairment charge in thes@imlated Statements of Operations line itemditlempairment of capitalized softwal
inventory and related items " during the fiscalryeaded 2014. The impairment is detailed in thiofahg table:

2014
Product software development expenditures $ 2,308,75:
Inventories 3,451,91
Product design costs 246,58
Tooling 298,69¢
Impairment of capitalized software, inventory arthted items $ 6,305,94

The Company determined that the capitalized soétwaeded to be replaced by a new architecture uledetopment. As a result, the
remaining value of the capitalized software waseeged in the year ended ended June 30, 2014. Thedly may still develop this
technology but has temporarily suspended its rebesrd development effort until the base busiressstored to more profitable levels.

In conjunction with the review of the capitalizenftsvare, it was determined that certain inventoeyns were obsolete or the Company had
guantities that are not expected to be used oegprtbduct forecast period. These inventory iteresrasluded net of expected recoveries.
Product design costs and assumed liabilities tgpwgathe current architecture design were expefgsaling related to products that are no
longer expected to be launched was expensed. Texteat the Company incurs future costs for theéinord development, software code and
product launch of the WiFi-based products, these¢hmosts will be expensed as incurred.

5. INVENTORIES
As of June 30, 2015 and 2014 , the Company’s irorgiwas valued using the lower of last-in, first-@lLIFO”) cost or market. If the first-in,
first-out (“FIFO”") method of inventory accountingth been used by the Company for inventories vadiédFO, inventories would have been

$ 753,439 and $ 1,172,262 higher than reportedra 30, 2015 and 2014 , respectively.

The components of inventories at June 30, 2013284d were as follows:

2015 2014
Raw materials $ 5,374,33. $ 5,593,15!
Finished goods 6,246,07. 6,327,22
11,620,40 11,920,38
Reserve for obsolete inventory (4,437,96) (4,865,44)
Total inventories $ 7,182,441 $ 7,054,93:
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6. EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENT

The major categories of equipment and leaseholdawgments at June 30, 2015 and 2014 are summarizédiows:

Estimated
useful lives 2015 2014
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years $ 642,20( 675,67(
Furniture and office equipment 5-10 years 374,61t 374,61t
Tooling 5 years 4,126,85! 3,607,31
Display booths 5-7 years 287,18( 287,18(
Computer equipment 3-5 years 1,414,51 1,414,517
Leasehold improvements 7-10 years 2,308,241 2,288,701
Assets in progress N/A 60,60( 259,32¢
9,214,20 8,907,33
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization 7,621,68! 7,066,84!
Equipment and leasehold improvements, net $ 1,592,52 1,840,49.

7. INCOME TAXES

The Company utilizes the liability method of accting for income taxes. The liability method mea&suthe expected income tax impact of
future taxable income and deductions implicit ia tonsolidated balance sheets. The income taxspwavn 2015 and 2014 consisted of the

following:

Year Ended June 30, 2015 2014
Current:
Federal (100,126 $ (1,863,209
State (167,28) 69,98
Deferred 284,78: (2,608,369
Total income tax provision (benefit) 1737t $ (4,401,58)
The 2015 and 2014 tax results in an effective déferent than the federal statutory rate becadsbheofollowing:
Year Ended June 30, 2015 2014
Federal income tax expense (benefit) at statuttey r 169,99¢ $ (3,382,30)
State income tax expense (benefit), net of fedecaime tax benefit (21,449 (285,80
Increase in valuation allowance — 148,00(
Stock-based compensation 53,59¢ 58,18:
Adjustments for unrecognized tax benefits (175,000 (546,11
Federal income tax credits — (187,349
Other (9,775 (206,209
Total income tax provision (benefit) 17,37 $ (4,401,58)
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Temporary differences which give rise to defermzbime tax assets and liabilities at June 30, 28#5Jane 30, 2014 include:

2015 2014
Deferred income tax assets:
Deferred compensation $ 835,27( $ 858,43:
Stock-based compensation 889,32! 714,35(
Accrued expenses and reserves 2,075,60. 2,701,14
Federal and state net operating loss carryforwards 463,23 371,74«
Valuation allowance (370,409 (370,409
Equipment and leasehold improvements 11,56¢ —
Other 14,65( 22,80¢
Total deferred income tax assets 3,919,24i 4,298,06!
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Equipment and leasehold improvements — (98,717
Other (4,677) —
Net deferred income tax assets $ 3,914,560 $ 4,199,35:
Deferred income tax assets as presented on thelmatied balance sheets:
2015 2014
Current deferred income tax assets $ 2,045,311 % 2,576,02:
Noncurrent deferred income tax assets 1,869,25. 1,623,32!
Net deferred income tax assets $ 3,914,56' $ 4,199,35:

Deferred income tax balances reflect the effectemiporary differences between the tax bases etsaasd liabilities and their carrying
amounts. These differences are stated at enaotadtes expected to be in effect when taxes dvalicpaid or recovered. The recognition of
these deferred tax balances will be realized thiovaymal recurring operations and, as such, thegaomhas recorded the full value of such
expected benefits. The Company has no federalgestting loss carryforwards as of June 30, 201te. Company has net operating loss
carryforwards in the state of Wisconsin totalingl®%,423 which expire in fiscal years 2026 throagB6 .

ASC Topic 740 "Income Taxes" prescribes a recogmithreshold and measurement attribute for then@iizh statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken, or expectéa taken, in a tax return. There were no additisignificant matters determined to be
unrecognized tax benefits taken or expected takentin a tax return that have been recorded o@dimepany’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2015 .aA®pthe unauthorized transactions, there wasiteoest accrued by the Company as of
June 30, 2015 and 2014 , respectively.

2015 2014
Accrued interest at beginning of year — % 49,15(
Interest charges to expense — 24 57¢
Interest charges reversed — (73,725
Accrued interest at end of year — % —

Additionally, ASC Topic 740 provides guidance op tiecognition of interest and penalties relateidtome taxes. There were no penalties
related to income taxes that have been accruegtognized as of and for the years ended June 36,&@d 2014 . The Company records
interest related to unrecognized tax benefits tarast expense. For the year ended 2014, the Gonufereased the interest it had accrued
related to its tax reporting of the unauthorizethsactions. The Company reversed the accrued shretated to the tax return that was filed for
the year ended June 30, 2008, because the stétirtatations expired for this return.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoeininrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

2015 2014
Unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of year $ 175,000 $ 696,11:
Gross increases - tax positions in prior years — 25,00(
Reductions due to lapse in statute — (546,113
Reductions based on settlements with taxing autesri (175,000 —
Unrecognized tax benefits at end of year $ —  $ 175,00(

In the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the Compatiled its position with a state tax authoritg aeduced the unrecognized tax benefits to
zero. The Company does not believe it has any ogrézed tax benefits as of June 30, 2015. Any chsmg the Company's unrecognized tax
benefits during the fiscal years ended June 305 201 2014 would impact the effective tax rate.

The Company files income tax returns in the UnBéakes federal jurisdiction and in several statisgictions. The Company’s federal tax
returns through tax year June 30, 2011 are seitiddhe income tax returns for tax years begindirig 1, 2011 are open. For states in which
the Company files state income tax returns, thieista@f limitations is generally open for tax yearsled June 30, 2011 and forward. During
the quarter ended December 31, 2014, the Compfmugsal return for the fiscal year ended June B@32was under examination. That
examination closed during the same quarter withdjaostments to the return.

The following are the changes in the valuationva#loce:

Balance, Increase in Release of
beginning valuation valuation Balance,
Year Ended June 30, of year allowance allowance end of year
2015 $ (370,409 — — 3 (370,409
2014 $ (222,409 (148,000 — % (370,409

8. CREDIT FACILITY

On May 12, 2010, the Company entered into a seatnestit facility ("Credit Agreement") with JPMorg&hase Bank, N.A. (“Lender”). The
Credit Agreement provided for an $8,000,000 revasecured credit facility with interest rates eithtanging from 0.0% to 0.75% over the
Lender’s most recently publicly announced prime @t2.0% to 3.0% over LIBOR, depending on the Camyfs leverage ratio. The Compz
pays a fee of 0.3% to 0.45% for unused amounts dtigthin the credit facility. On July 24, 2013¢etRredit Agreement was amended to
extend the expiration to July 31, 2015. On JulyZZB.4, the Credit Agreement was amended to redectatility to $5,000,000 , subject to a
borrowing base calculation as defined in the Craditeement, and to amend certain financial covemabm July 29, 2015, the Credit
Agreement was amended to extend the expiratioalyo31, 2016, and to amend certain financial comehdn addition to the revolving loans,
the Credit Agreement also provides that the Compaay, from time to time, request the Lender toésigdters of credit for the benefit of the
Company up to a sublimit of $2,000,000 and sulifecertain other limitations. The loans may bedusely for general corporate purposes of
the Company.

The Credit Agreement contains certain affirmativegative and financial covenants customary fomfiirags of this type. The negative
covenants include restrictions on other indebtesinens, fundamental changes, certain investmantgt sales, sale and leaseback transa
and transactions with affiliates, among other retstns. The financial covenants include minimuBIEDA and minimum tangible net worth
requirements. The Company and the Lender alsoezhisto the Pledge and Security Agreement dateg 2222010, under which the
Company granted the Lender a security interestifistantially all of the Company’s assets in coninactvith the Company’s obligations under
the Credit Agreement. As of June 30, 2015 and 2Q@tidre were no outstanding borrowings on theifgcil
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9. ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities for the years ended June 3@,528nd 2014 are as follows:

2015 2014
Cooperative advertising and promotion allowances $ 400,11: $ 750,43:
Product warranty obligations 312,66« 385,85:
Customer credit balances 261,97 1,988,05:
Current deferred compensation 150,00( —
Accrued returns 97,02¢ 89,66!
Employee benefits 93,56¢ 129,51t
Legal and professional fees 70,00( 79,90(
Management bonuses and profit-sharing 71,38 37,50(
Sales commissions and bonuses 68,89( 148,27¢
Accrued severance — 123,72(
Other 49,407 120,55

$ 157502 $ 3,853,47.

10. PRODUCT WARRANTY OBLIGATIONS

The Company records a liability for product wargaobligations at the time of sale based upon hisibwarranty experience. The majority of
the Company’s products carry a lifetime warrantye TTompany also records a liability for specifianaaty matters when they become known
and are reasonably estimated. The Company’s durehnon-current product warranty obligationsiactuded in accrued liabilities and other
liabilities, respectively, in the consolidated brada sheets. However, the Company is continuoesbasing new and more complex and
technologically advanced products. Even though sohtieese products have a shorter warranty peitigslat least reasonably possible that
products could be released with certain unknowdityuar design problems resulting in higher thapested warranty and related costs. These
costs could have a materially adverse effect orCibrapany's results of operations and financial tmrdin the near term.

Changes to the product warranty obligations foryéhars ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Balance, Provision Warranty
beginning charged to expenses Balance,
Year Ended June 30, of year expense incurred end of year
2015 $ 722,62 103,92! (294,659 $ 531,89:
2014 $ 1,111,501 97,30( (486,176 $ 722,62¢

11. DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Company has deferred compensation agreemetht&former and current officer. The related expaasalculated using the net present
value of the expected payments and is includedlimg, general and administrative expenses intbesolidated Statements of Operations.
The Company's current and non-current deferred eosgtion obligations are included in accrued lisdd and deferred compensation,
respectively, in the consolidated balance sheéts.net present value was calculated for the fowoffarer using a discount factor of 2.70% and
2.60% as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 , respectiVbly net present value was calculated for the ctoficer using a discount factor of 4.80%
and 4.62% at June 30, 2015 and 2014 , respectively.

The Board of Directors entered into an agreemenbiinue the 1991 base salary of former chairmaihie remainder of his life. These
payments began in the fiscal year ended June 3®, 28nd payments of $50,000 were made under ttiagement. The Company has a
deferred compensation liability of $820,720 and44306 recorded as of June 30, 2015 and 20&dpectively. Deferred compensation exp
of $166,414 and $202,383 was recognized undeathismigement in 2015 and 2014 , respectively.
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The Board of Directors has approved a supplemeetiament plan with an officer that calls for anhagash compensation following retirem
from the Company in an amount equal to 2% of bak#s as defined in the agreement, multipliedi®/riumber of years of service to the
Company. The retirement payments are to be paitthfyoto the officer until his death and then te burviving spouse monthly until her
death. The Company has a deferred compensattalitjiaof $1,436,766 and $1,615,785 recorded adunfe 30, 2015 and 2014 , respectively.
A reversal of deferred compensation expense of $189%and $257,842 was recognized under this armaegein 2015 and 2014 , respectively.

The Company uses life insurance policies to profudels to meet its deferred compensation obligation
12.  INTEREST EXPENSE
The Company incurs interest expense primarily eelab its secured credit facility (see Note 8 ) #mits liabilities for its tax positions related

to the unauthorized transactions. As the tax rsthave been settled and statute of limitations leap&ed, the accrued interest expense on
certain items has been reversed. Interest expeatag was as follows for the fiscal years endedeJd8®, 2015 and 2014 , respectively:

2015 2014
Interest expense (benefit) on secured credit fgcili $ 12,817 % (587)
Interest expense for tax positions related to Uraied transactions — 24,57
Interest reversals for tax positions related toutinarized transactions — (73,725
Other interest expense 14¢
Interest expense (income) $ 12,81 $ (49,589

13. INCOME (LOSS) PER COMMON AND COMMNOSTOCK EQUIVALENT SHARE

Basic income (loss) per share is computed basédeoweighted-average number of common shares adista The weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding was 7,3820f06d years ended June 30, 2015 and 20@hen dilutive, stock options are includec
income (loss) per share as share equivalents tisgngeasury stock method. For the years endeel 3002015 and 2014 there were no
common stock equivalents related to stock opti@mtgrthat were included in the computation of tieégivted-average number of shares
outstanding for diluted income (loss) per sharkar8s issuable upon the exercise of outstandingrepof 2,245,000 and 2,066,000 were
excluded from the diluted weighted average comniames outstanding for the years ended June 30,&0d2014 , respectively, as they
would be anti-dilutive.

14. STOCK OPTIONS

In 2012, pursuant to the recommendation of the @o&Directors, the stockholders ratified the ci@mabf the Company’s 2012 Omnibus
Incentive Plan (the “2012 Plan”), which supersetted1990 Flexible Incentive Plan (the "1990 PlariThe 2012 Plan is administered by a
committee of the Board of Directors and providesgi@nting of various stock-based awards includitagk options to eligible participants,
primarily officers and certain key employees. fat@f 2,000,00&hares of common stock were available under timestef the 2012 Plan plt
shares outstanding under the 1990 Plan which erpiage otherwise forfeited, canceled or terminatfer July 25, 2012, the Effective Date of
the 2012 Plan. As of June 30, 2015 , there we&@91308 options available for future grants. Qmivest over a three to five year period from
the date of grant, with a maximum term of fiveea years.

The fair value of each stock option grant was esti as of the date of grant using the Black-Sehpiieing model. The resulting
compensation cost for fixed awards with gradedingstchedules is amortized on a straight-line baxgés the vesting period for the entire
award. The expected term of awards granted isrdated based on historical experience with sindlaards, giving consideration to the
expected term and vesting schedules. The expeotatility is determined based on the Company’sdrisal stock prices over the most recent
period commensurate with the expected term of tveré The risk-free interest rate is based on Ut8asury zero-coupon issues with a
remaining term commensurate with the expected tdrthe award. Expected pre-vesting option forfeituare based on historical data.

As of June 30, 2015 , there was approximately $Blof total unrecognized compensation cost relatesidok options granted under the 2!
Plan and 1990 Plan. This cost is expected to dmgrézed over a weighted average period of 2&8s. Total unrecognized compensation
will be adjusted for any future changes in estirdated actual forfeitures. The Company recognitedk-based compensation expense of
$630,539 and $684,554 in 2015 and 2014 , respéctiviéhese expenses were included in selling, gerserd administrative expenses.
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There was no cash received from stock option esesailuring 2015 or 2014 .

The per share weighted average fair value of thekstptions granted during the years ended Jun2®® and 2014 were $0.73 and $1.47 ,
respectively. The fair value of each option grdrigeestimated on the date of grant using the B&alkoles option-pricing model. For the

options granted in 2015 and 2014 , the Company tieetbllowing weighted-average assumptions:

2015 2014
Expected stock price volatility 43% 47%
Risk free interest rate 1.52% 1.27%
Expected dividend yield 4.0(% 4.0(%
Expected forfeitures 1.5(% 1.5(%
Expected life of options 4.6 year 4.6 year

The following table identifies options granted, exeed, canceled, or available for exercise pursttathe 1990 Plan and the 2012 Plan:

Aggregate
Weighted Intrinsic
Weighted Average Value of
Stock Average Remaining In-The-
Number of Options Exercise Contractual Money
Shares Price Range Price Life - Years Options
Shares under option at July 1, 2013 1,741,001 $3.90 - $13.09 $ 6.4C 439 $ 55,16(
Granted 445,00( $5.30 - $5.83 $ 5.64
Exercised — — —
Expired (120,000 $11.01 $ 11.01
Forfeited — — —
Shares under option at June 30, 2014 2,066,001 $3.90-$13.09 $ 5.97 413 $ —
Granted 470,00( $2.24 - $3.30 $ 3.14
Exercised — — —
Expired (201,000) $4.97 -$13.09 $ 7.0€
Forfeited (90,000 $3.00 - $6.00 $ 4.6¢
Shares under option at June 30, 2015 2,245,001 $2.24-$13.09 $ 5.3¢ 3.69 $ 1,67¢€
Exercisable as of June 30, 2014 904,91¢ $3.90 - $13.09 $ 6.3¢
Exercisable as of June 30, 2015 1,134,501 $3.90 - $13.09 $ 6.01

A summary of intrinsic value and cash received figiotk option exercises and fair value of vestedksbptions for the fiscal years ended

June 30, 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

2015 2014
Total intrinsic value of stock options exercised — 3 =
Cash received from stock option exercises — 8 —
Total fair value of stock options vested $ 696,95¢ $ 586,34.

During the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014dptains of 470,000 and 445,006espectively, were granted during the year ai@pqua
to or greater than the market value of the comntackson the date of grant. These options had aimeigaverage exercise price of $3.14 and
$5.64 for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2@kpectively.

15. STOCK REPURCHASE PROGRAM
The Company has an agreement with the former claairin the event of his death, at the requesteeitecutor of his estate, to repurchase hi
Company common stock from his estate. The Comgaeg not have the right to require the estatelteteek to the Company. As such, this

arrangement is accounted for as a written put optith the fair value of the put option recordechaderivative liability.
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As of June 30, 2015the estate of the former chairman does not haotdierial amount of Company stock. As such, thereiexposure that t
executor of the former chairman's estate may reghia Company to repurchase a material amounbok & the event of his death. The
repurchase price is 9586 the fair market value of the common stock ondhge that notice to repurchase is provided taiimpany. The tot:
number of shares to be repurchased will be suffidie provide proceeds which are the lesser of 20 or the amount of estate taxes and
administrative expenses incurred by his estatee Jdmpany may elect to pay the purchase pricesh camay elect to pay cash equal to 25%
of the total amount due and to execute a promissoty at the prime rate of interest for the balgrmyable over four years. The Company
maintains a $1,150,000 life insurance policy todfansubstantial portion of this obligation.

In April 1995, the Board of Directors approved acktrepurchase program authorizing the Companytohase from time to time up to
$2,000,000 of its common stock for its own accouBtbsequently, the Board of Directors periodichtig approved increases in the amount
authorized for repurchase under the program. Alpé 30, 2015, the Board had authorized the capse of an aggregate of $45,500,000 of
common stock under the stock repurchase programhich $43,360,247 had been expended. No sharesrepurchased in 2015 or 2014 .
16. ADDITIONAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

The net changes in cash as a result of changesenating assets and liabilities consist of theofalhg:

2015 2014

Accounts receivable $ 311,18 $ 9,206,29!
Inventories (127,509 (5,672
Income taxes receivable 903,74! (1,109,27))
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (199,84 317,38
Income taxes payable (175,000 (2,509,44.)
Accounts payable (292,50 (467,58))
Accrued liabilities (2,428,44) (851,98
Other liabilities (117,545 (403,229

Net change $ (2,125,91) $ 4,176,50:
Net cash (refunded) paid during the year for:

Income taxes $ (985,58) $ 1,867,18.

Interest $ 12,817 % 2,18t

17. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Substantially all domestic employees are partidpamthe Koss Employee Stock Ownership Trust (KEB@hder which an annual
contribution in either cash or common stock maynagle at the discretion of the Board of Directds® contributions were made for the fiscal
years2015 or 2014 .

The Company maintains a retirement savings plaemusgdction 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Codeis plan covers all employees of the
Company who have completed one full fiscal quasteservice. Matching contributions can be madiheatdiscretion of the Board of
Directors. For fiscal years 2015 and 2014 , th&chiag contribution was 25% and 100% of employestidoutions to the plan, respectively.
Vesting of Company contributions occurs immediateBompany contributions were $91,354 and $431¢dl8thg 2015 and 2014 ,
respectively.

35




18. FOREIGN SALES AND SIGNIFICANT CUSTORRS
The Company'’s net foreign sales amounted to $77480during 2015 and $8,326,831 during 2014 .

The Company’s sales by country were as follows:

2015 2014

United States $ 16,779,31 $ 15,514,05
Sweden 3,677,22! 2,310,06
Canada 498,02t 604,97:
Russia 478,01: 377,13!
United Kingdom 465,64 707,72
Czech Republic 441,75: 1,309,69
Cyprus 414,78 1,975,73
All other countries 1,475,29. 1,041,50.

Net sales $ 24,230,05 $ 23,840,88

Sales during 2015 and 2014 to the Company's frged customers, which are generally large natimtallers or foreign distributors,
represented approximately 45% and 37% of the Coppaet sales, respectively. Included in theseqregagies were sales to a single
Scandinavian distributor which represented appraséfy 15% and 10% of the Company's net sales d@®i% and 2014 , respectively.

19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company leases its facility in Milwaukee, Wissim from Koss Holdings, LLC, which is wholly-ownég the former chairman. On May
15, 2012 , the lease was renewed for a periodrefyfears, ending June 30, 2018 , and is being ateddor as an operating lease. The lease
extension maintained the rent at a fixed rate &0$300 per year. The Company is responsible fgraperty maintenance, insurance, taxes
and other normal expenses related to ownershipal Tent expense was $ 380,000 in both 2015 and 201

20. LEGAL MATTERS
As of June 30, 2015 , the Company is party to théers related to the unauthorized transactionsritesl below:

e On February 18, 2010, the Company filed an actigainst American Express Company, American Egpresvel Related Services
Company, Inc., AMEX Card Services Company, Decisieience, and Pamela S. Hopkins in Superior CduMasicopa County,
Arizona, case no. CV2010-006631. The claims allegeldide aiding and abetting breach of fiduciaryydaiding and abetting fraud,
and conversion relating to the unauthorized traimas. The case is proceeding in the Superior Gaitih respect to those claims.

e On December 17, 2010, the Company filed an acgrinst Park Bank in Circuit Court of Milwaukeeudty, Wisconsin alleging
claims of negligence and breach of the Uniform Eidries Act relating to the unauthorized transangtidn 2015, Park Bank filed third
party claims based on contribution and subrogamainst Grant Thornton LLP and Michael Koss. Ther€granted motions to
dismiss the contribution claims against Grant ThamriLLP and Michael Koss, but determined that is\geemature to decide the
subrogation claims at this stage of the proceedifigs case is proceeding in the Circuit Court.

The ultimate resolution of these matters is no¢heinable unless otherwise noted.

We also are subject to a variety of other clain suits that arise from time to time in the ordjneourse of our business. Although
management currently believes that resolving tiekms against us, individually or in aggregatd| mot have a material adverse impact on
our consolidated financial statements, these nsatter subject to inherent uncertainties and managesrview of these matters may change in
the future.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyisthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduaty authorized.

KOSS CORPORATION

By: /sl Michael J. Koss August 27, 2015
Michael J. Koss
Chairman
President
Chief Executive Officer

By: /s/ David D. Smith August 27, 2015
David D. Smith
Executive Vice President
Chief Financial Officer
Principal Accounting Officer
Secretary

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed belptine following persons on behalf of 1
Registrant and in the capacities indicated on Augids2015 .

/s/ John C. Koss /sl Michael J. Koss

John C. Koss, Director Michael J. Koss, Director

/sl Lawrence S. Mattson /s/ John J. Stollenwerk
Lawrence S. Mattson, Director John J. Stollenwerk, Director
/s/ Thomas L. Doerr /s/ Theodore H. Nixon
Thomas L. Doerr, Director Theodore H. Nixon, Director
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No. Exhibit Description

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorpamatf Koss Corporation, as in effect on Novemb@r2009. Filed as
Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report omrd.0-Q for the period ended December 31, 2009rcatporated
herein by reference.

3.2 By-Laws of Koss Corporation. Filed as Exhhi2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-Ktkar year ended
June 30, 1996 and incorporated herein by reference.

10.1 Death Benefit Agreement with John C. Kosked-as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Annual Reporform 10-K for the
year ended June 30, 1996 and incorporated heraiefésence. *

10.2 Stock Purchase Agreement with John C. Kdksd Bs Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Annual Remort~orm 10-K for the
year ended June 30, 1996 and incorporated heraiefesence. *

10.3 Salary Continuation Resolution for John Cs&d-iled as Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Annugp&t on Form 10-K for
the year ended June 30, 1996 and incorporatednheyaieference. *

10.4 1983 Incentive Stock Option Plan. Filed akikix 10.7 to the Company’s Annual Report on For®aKLfor the year ended
June 30, 1996 and incorporated herein by referénce.

10.5 1990 Flexible Incentive Plan. Filed as Exti#tai to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfe year ended
June 30, 1990 and incorporated herein by referénce.

10.6 Consent of Directors (Supplemental Execufiedrement Plan for Michael J. Koss dated March9B7). Filed as
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amrr 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1997 andrporated
herein by reference. *

10.7 Credit Agreement dated May 12, 2010, betwé&mss Corporation and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.AdRikExhibit 10.12
to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qtffier quarter ended March 31, 2010 and incorporagadference
herein.

10.8 Pledge and Security Agreement dated May @2Q 2between Koss Corporation and JPMorgan Chask, BeA. Filed as
Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s Quarterly Reportramm 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2010iacafporated by
reference herein.

10.9 Koss Corporation 2012 Omnibus Incentive Rllacorporated by reference to Appendix B to Kosspbaation's Definitive
Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed on August®1?2). *

10.10 Amendment No. 2 dated July 24, 2013 to €rsgiieement dated May 12, 2010, between Koss Catjpor and JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A. Filed as Exhibit 10.15 to the Canys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year endlgte 30, 2014,
and incorporated by reference herein.

10.11 Amendment No. 3 dated July 23, 2014 to Cregiieement dated May 12, 2010, between Koss Catjoor and JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A. Filed as Exhibit 10.16 to the Canys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year endlate 30, 2014,
and incorporated by reference herein.

10.12 Amendment No. 4 dated July 29, 2015 to €rsgiieement dated May 12, 2010, between Koss Catjpor and JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A. **

14 Koss Corporation Code of Ethics. Filed as EixHih to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10eKthe year ended

June 30, 2011 and incorporated by reference herein.



23.1

Consent of Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP. *
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31.1

31.2

32.1

32.2

101

Rule 13a -14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification ofelltxecutive Officer. **
Rule 13a -14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification ofeéllrinancial Officer. **
Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executd#icer. ***
Section 1350 Certification of Chief Finandidficer. ***

The following financial information from Ko&rporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for tharyended June 30,
2015, formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Repgrt.anguage): (i) Consolidated Statements of Qera for the
years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, (ii) Conselidaalance Sheets as of June 30, 2015 and 20) € disolidated
Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended Jur2035 and 2014, (iv) Consolidated StatementsafkBolders' Equity
for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 arii§\Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

*%

*kk

Denotes a management contract or compensatoryoplamangement
Filed herewith
Furnished herewith
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AMENDMENT NO. 4 TO CREDIT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 4 TO CREDIT AGREEMENT (this “ Aendment), entered into as of July
29, 2015, is by and between Koss Corporation, aWele corporation (* Borrowé), and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N
(“ Lender”) under the Credit Agreement defined below.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Borrower and Lender entered into that certain Grédreement dated as of May 12, 2010
(as amended to date, the “ Credit Agreenigmiursuant to which Lender agreed to extend ¢redBorrower upon the
terms and subject to the conditions set forth iheend

WHEREAS , Borrower has requested that Lender enter ineoAmendment for the purpose of making
certain modifications and amendments to the Cisglieement as described herein, and Lender is gitlinagree to
such modifications, all on the terms and subjec¢héoconditions set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions cor@diherein, the parties hereto
hereby agree as follows:

1. Definitions. All capitalized terms used and not otherwiserdtiherein shall have the
meanings given to such terms by the Credit Agre¢meamended hereby.

2.  Amendments Upon satisfaction of the conditions set forttSection Jelow, the Credit
Agreement shall be amended as follows:

a. All references to the Credit Agreement in tmedt Agreement or any of the Loan Documents
shall refer to the Credit Agreement as amendedblgere

b. Section 1.01 (Defined Terms) shall be amended |ksnfs:

i.  The definition of “Adjusted One Month LIBO Rate"tderth therein shall be amended to
read as follows:

“ Adjusted One Month LIBO Ratémeans, for any day, an interest rate per annwnaleq
to the sum of (i) 2.50% plus (ii) the Adjusted LIBRate for a one-month interest period
on such day (or if such day is not a Business Brayimmediately preceding Business
Day); provided that, for the avoidance of doub¢, Adjusted LIBO Rate for any day shall
be based on the LIBO Screen Rate at approximafe@0la.m. London time on such day;
provided further, that, if the LIBO Screen Ratsath time shall be less than zero, such
rate shall be deemed to be zero for purposes ®Riieement.




ii.  The definition of “Change in Law” set forth thereshall be amended to read as follows:

“ Change in Law means the occurrence after the date of this Agese of any of the
following: (a) the adoption of or taking effect arfiy law, rule, regulation or treaty; (b) &
change in any law, rule, regulation or treaty othi@ administration, interpretation or
application thereof by any Governmental Authordyjc) compliance by the Lender (or,
for purposes of Section 2.14(b), by any lendingcefbf the Lender or by the Lender’s
holding company, if any) with any request, guidelirequirement or directive (whether ol
not having the force of law) of any Governmentati#arity made or issued after the date
of this Agreement; provided that notwithstandingthimg herein to the contrary, (x) the
Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Praiaddct and all requests, rules,
guidelines, requirements or directives thereundéssued in connection therewith or in
the implementation thereof, and (y) all requesties, guidelines, requirements or
directives promulgated by the Bank for Internatiddettiements, the Basel Committee or
Banking Supervision (or any successor or simildharity) or the United States or forei
regulatory authorities, in each case pursuant seBd#, shall in each case be deemed to
be a “Change in Law”, regardless of the date edaecigopted, issued or implemented.

iii.  Clause (k) of the definition of “Eligible Accountss amended to read as follows:

(k) which is owed by an Account Debtor whichdges not maintain its chief executive
office in the U.S. or Canada, (ii) is not organizexier applicable law of the U.S., any
state of the U.S., Canada, or any province of Canadess, in either case, such Accou
backed by a Letter of Credit acceptable to Lendachvis in the possession of, and has
been assigned to, Lender, or (iii) is a Sanctidpexson.

iv. The definition of “Eligible Inventory” shall be améded to add a new clause (p) to read as
follows:

(p) which has been acquired from a Sanctionesidpe

v. The definition of “Federal Funds Effective Ratet &&th therein shall be amended to read
as follows:

“ Eederal Funds Effective Rateneans, for any day, the weighted average (rounded
upwards, if necessary, to the next 1/100 of 1%hefrates on overnight Federal funds
transactions with members of the
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Vi.

Vil.

Federal Reserve System arranged by Federal funélerist as published on the next
succeeding Business Day by the Federal Reserve @&di&w York, or, if such rate is not
so published for any day that is a Business Dayatlerage (rounded upwards, if
necessary, to the next 1/100 of 1%) of the quatatfor such day for such transactions
received by the Lender from three Federal fundkdmoof recognized standing selected
by it; provided, that, if the Federal Funds EffeetRate shall be less than zero, such rate
shall be deemed to be zero for purposes of thieégent.

The definition of “LIBO Rate” set forth therein dhlhe amended to read as follows:

“ LIBO Rate” means, with respect to any Eurodollar Borrowingdny applicable
Interest Period or for any CB Floating Rate Lo&e, London interbank offered rate as
administered by ICE Benchmark Administration (oy ather Person that takes over the
administration of such rate for Dollars) for a perequal in length to such Interest Perioc
as displayed on pages LIBORO1 or LIBORO02 of thetBsuscreen that displays such ratc
(or, in the event such rate does not appear orugeRepage or screen, on any success
substitute page on such screen that displays siehar on the appropriate page of such
other information service that publishes such fiae time to time as shall be selected b
the Lender in its reasonable discretion; in eade cthe “LIBO Screen Rate”) at
approximately 11:00 a.m., London time, two (2) Besis Days prior to the
commencement of such Interest Period; provided (katf any LIBO Screen Rate shall
be less than zero, such rate shall be deemedzerbdor the purposes of this Agreement
and (y) if the LIBO Screen Rate shall not be avddat such time for a period equal in
length to such Interest Period (an “Impacted IrgeReriod”), then the LIBO Rate shall be
the Interpolated Rate at such time, subject toi@eet 13 in the event that the Lender s
conclude that it shall not be possible to determsingh Interpolated Rate (which
conclusion shall be conclusive and binding abseartifest error); provided further, that
any Interpolated Rate shall be less than zero, satehshall be deemed to be zero for
purposes of this Agreement. Notwithstanding thevabto the extent that “LIBO Rate” or
“Adjusted LIBO Rate’is used in connection with a CB Floating Rate Laarth rate sha
be determined as modified by the definition of Asigd One Month LIBO Rate.

The definition of “Maturity Date” set forth thereghall be amended to read as follows:

-3-




“ Maturity Date” means July 31, 2016, or any earlier date on wthehRevolving
Commitment is reduced to zero or otherwise termsis@iursuant to the terms hereof.

viii. ~ The following new definitions shall be added tot®et1.01 in appropriate alphabetical
order as follows:

“ Anti-Corruption Laws' means all laws, rules, and regulations of anisgliction
applicable to the Borrower or any of its Affiliattem time to time concerning or relating
to bribery or corruption.

“ Fourth Amendment Effective Datameans the date on which the conditions to
effectiveness of the Amendment No. 4 to Credit &Agrent dated as of July 29, 2015 are
satisfied.

“ Impacted Interest Perigdshall have the meaning set forth in the defimitaf LIBO
Rate.

“ Interpolated Raté means, at any time, for any Interest Period réte per annum
(rounded to the same number of decimal placeseasIBO Screen Rate) determined by
the Lender (which determination shall be conclusind binding absent manifest error) tc
be equal to the rate that results from interpotptin a linear basis between: (a) the LIBO
Screen Rate for the longest period (for which tHe&Q.Screen Rate is available) that is
shorter than the Impacted Interest Period anch@).tBO Screen Rate for the shortest
period (for which the LIBO Screen Rate is availalifat exceeds the Impacted Interest
Period, in each case, at such time.

“ LIBO Screen Raté shall have the meaning set forth in the defimtaf LIBO Rate.

“ Sanctioned Countryy means, at any time, a country or territory whichsgslf the subjec
or target of any Sanctions (at the time of thisegmnent, Cuba, Iran, North Korea, Sudar
and Syria).

“ Sanctioned Persghmeans, at any time, (a) any Person listed in@aryctions-related
list of designated Persons maintained by the Ofifdéoreign Assets Control of the U.S.
Department of the Treasury, the U.S. Departmetate or by the United Nations
Security Council, the European Union or any Europdaion member state, (b) any
Person operating, organized or resident in a Samexdi Country or (c) any Person owned
or controlled by any such Person or Persons destiibthe foregoing clauses (a) or (b).
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“ Sanctions’ means economic or financial sanctions or tradbangoes imposed,
administered or enforced from time to time by (@ U.S. government, including those
administered by the Office of Foreign Assets Cdrdfdahe U.S. Department of the
Treasury or the U.S. Department of State, or (b)Uhited Nations Security Council, the
European Union, any European Union member statieoMajesty’s Treasury of the
United Kingdom.

C. A new Section 3.17 shall be added to read in itisedp as follows

SECTION 3.21. AntiCorruption Laws and Sanction8orrower has implemented and
maintains in effect policies and procedures desigoeensure compliance by Borrower
Subsidiaries and their respective directors, officemployees and agents with Anti-
Corruption Laws and applicable Sanctions, and Beeroits Subsidiaries and their
respective officers and employees and, to the kedgé of Borrower, its directors and
agents, are in compliance with Anti-Corruption Laavel applicable Sanctions in all
material respects. None of (a) Borrower, any Suasidr, to the knowledge of Borrower
or Subsidiary, any of their respective directofficers or employees, or (b) to the
knowledge of Borrower or any Subsidiary, any agégml@orrower or any Subsidiary that
will act in any capacity in connection with or béh&om the credit facility established
hereby, is a Sanctioned Person. No Borrowing oteketf Credit, use of proceeds, or o
transaction contemplated by this Agreement or therd_.oan Documents will violate
Anti-Corruption Laws or applicable Sanctions.

d. Section 5.07 (Compliance with Laws) shall beeaded to add the following sentence to the enc
of such section:

Borrower will maintain in effect and enforce poéisiand procedures designed to ensure
compliance by Borrower, its Subsidiaries and thespective directors, officers,
employees and agents with Anti-Corruption Laws applicable Sanctions.

e. Section 5.08 (Use of Proceeds and Letter afifneill be amended to add the following s to the
end of such section:

Borrower will not request any Borrowing or Lettdr@redit, and Borrower shall not use,
and Borrower shall procure that its Subsidiaries itsand their respective directors,
officers, employees and agents shall not use,iheepds of any Borrowing or Letter of
Credit (a) in furtherance of an offer, payment,mige to pay, or authorization of the
payment or giving of money, or anything else oliglto any Person in violation of any
Anti-Corruption Laws, (b) for
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the purpose of funding, financing or facilitatingyaactivities, business or transaction o
with any Sanctioned Person, or in any Sanctioneth@gp, or (c) in any manner that
would result in the violation of any Sanctions aggble to any party hereto.

f. Section 6.12(a) shall be amended in its entiretgéal as follow:

(@) _Minimum EBITDA. Borrower will not permit its EBITDA, determined af the las
day of each fiscal quarter of the Borrower for tivelve month period then ending,
commencing with the fiscal quarter of the Borrowading September 30, 2015, to be
than $1,600,000.

3. Conditions: Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Amendmentllshat become effective unless and
until Lender receives:

a. afully-executed copy of this Amendment;

b. a certificate of an officer of Borrower, certifyirag to incumbency, organizational documents and
authorization of this amendment; and

c. such other certificates or documents as Lendds@ounsel may reasonably request.

4. Representations and Warrantiddorrower repeats and reaffirms the representsiéom warranties
set forth in_Article lllof the Credit Agreement as though made on and #dsealate hereof, except for representatior
warranties that are made as of a particular daigol/er also represents and warrants that the érecuaelivery and
performance of this Amendment, and the documensined herein, are within the corporate powers afr8ver, have
been duly authorized by all necessary corporaieraend do not and will not (i) require any consenapproval of the
shareholders of Borrower; (ii) violate any provisiof the articles of incorporation or by-laws ofrBower or of any
law, rule, regulation, order, writ, judgment, ingtion, decree, determination or award presenthffiect having
applicability to Borrower or any subsidiary of Bower; (iii) require the consent or approval offibng a registration
with, any governmental body, agency or authoritiieo than routine filings with the U.S. Securitaagl Exchange
Commission; or (iv) result in any breach of or ddnge a default under, or result in the impositafrany lien, charge «
encumbrance upon any property of Borrower or amgisiiary of Borrower pursuant to, any indenturether
agreement or instrument under which Borrower orsuhysidiary of Borrower is a party or by which itits properties
may be bound or affected. This Amendment constttite legal, valid and binding obligation of Borevenforceable
in accordance with its terms, except as such eaédmitity may be limited by bankruptcy or similama affecting the
enforceability of creditors’ rights generally.

5. Obligations Enforceable, EtBorrower acknowledges and agrees that its oldigatunder the
Credit Agreement are not subject to any offsetedeé or counterclaim assertable by Borrower andhkeaCredit
Agreement and the Loan Documents are valid, binding
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and fully enforceable according to their respecterens. Except as expressly provided above, thdiChkgreement an
the Loan Documents shall remain in full force affdat, and this Amendment shall not release, disghar satisfy any
present or future debts, obligations or liabiliied.ender of Borrower or of any debtor, guaramoother person or
entity liable for payment or performance of anyso€h debts, obligations or liabilities of Borrower,any security
interest, lien or other collateral or security &y of such debts, obligations or liabilities ofrBwer or such debtors,
guarantors, or other persons or entities, or waiwedefault, and Lender expressly reserves atsaights and remedie
with respect to Borrower and all such debtors, guiamrs or other persons or entities, and all sechrgty interests, liet
and other collateral and security. This is an amerd and not a novation. Without limiting the gexligy of the
foregoing, all present and future debts, obligatiand liabilities of Borrower under the Credit Agmeent, as amended,
are and shall continue to be secured by the Sgmgiteement and any other Collateral Documents.

6. Fees and Expense#s contemplated by Section 8.03¢hthe Credit Agreement, Borrower shall
responsible for the payment of all fees and oypaxtket disbursements incurred by Lender in conoratiith the
preparation, execution and delivery of this AmendimBorrower further acknowledges and agrees thasuant to an
on the terms set forth in such Section 8.03@0rrower is and shall be responsible for the paynof other fees,
expenses, costs and charges arising under omgelatithe Credit Agreement, as amended herebythenldoan
Documents, as set forth in such Section 8.03(a)

7. Entire Agreement This Amendment and the other documents refeodebtein contain the entire
agreement between Lender and Borrower with redpdbe subject matter hereof, superseding all presvi
communications and negotiations, and no represenjatndertaking, promise or condition concernimg $subject
matter hereof shall be binding upon Lender unlésarly expressed in this Agreement or in the ottemuments
referred to herein.

8. Miscellaneous The provisions of this Amendment shall inurelte benefit of any holder of any
Obligations, and shall inure to the benefit of &edbinding upon any successor to any of the pamgesto. All
agreements, representations and warranties madim lséall survive the execution of this Amendmertd the making
of the loans under the Credit Agreement, as so deteimThis Amendment shall be governed by and coedtin
accordance with the internal laws of the State &fddhsin. This Amendment may be signed in any nurabe
counterparts with the same effect as if the sigeatthereto and hereto were upon the same insttuitias
Amendment is solely for the benefit of the partieseto and their permitted successors and as$ignsther person or
entity shall have any rights under, or becaus@®kiistence of, this Amendment.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF , this Amendment has been duly executed as ofdalieadd year first above
written.

KOSS CORPORATION

By: /s/ David Smith
Name: David Smith
Title: Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.

By: /s/ Glenn M. Margraff
Name: Glenn M. Margraff
Title: Authorized Signatory

[ Sgnature Page to Amendment No. 4 to Credit Agreement]



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statements (Nos. 333-89872, 333-37388-20405 and 333-184754) on Form
S-8 of our report dated August 27, 2015 , relatnthe consolidated financial statements of Kosgp@ation and Subsidiary as of and for the
years endeJune 30, 2015 and 2014 , appearing in this AnnepbR on

Form 10-K of Koss Corporation for the year endenkeJ80, 2015 .
/sl BAKER TILLY VIRCHOW KRAUSE, LLP

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
August 27, 2015



Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

I, Michael J. Koss, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on ForaKldf Koss Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the consolidated firrstatements, and other financial informationudeld in this report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, tesaf operations and cash flows of the registeenof, and for, the periods presented ir
this report;

| am responsible for establishing and maintgjrdisclosure controls and procedures (as defim&kchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial repy (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢f) 45d-15(f)) for the registrant
and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under my
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its subsidiasymade known to me by others wit
those entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financiglomting, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under
my supervision, to provide reasonable assuranadagy the reliability of financial reporting anitet preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

c¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the registraliddosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport my conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation;
and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegis¢'s internal control over financial reportirigt occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggan

| have disclosed, based on my maseevaluation of internal control over finanaigborting, to the registrant's auditors and the
audit committee of the registrant's board of dwex{or persons performing the equivalent funcions

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize and rtefraincial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

August 27, 2015

/sl Michael J. Koss

Michael J. Koss
Chief Executive Officer and President



Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

[, David D. Smith, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on ForaKldf Koss Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the consolidated firrstatements, and other financial informationudeld in this report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, tesaf operations and cash flows of the registeenof, and for, the periods presented ir
this report;

| am responsible for establishing and maintgjrdisclosure controls and procedures (as defim&kchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial repy (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢f) 45d-15(f)) for the registrant
and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedoes designed under my
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its subsidiasymade known to me by others wit
those entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financiglomting, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under
my supervision, to provide reasonable assuranadagy the reliability of financial reporting anitet preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

c¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the registraliddosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport my conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation;
and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegis¢'s internal control over financial reportirigt occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggan

| have disclosed, based on my maseevaluation of internal control over finanaigborting, to the registrant's auditors and the
audit committee of the registrant's board of dwex{or persons performing the equivalent funcions

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize and rtefraincial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

August 27, 2015

/s/ David D. Smith

David D. Smith
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 8002,
18 U.S.C. Section 1350

I, Michael J. Koss, Chief Executive Officer of KaSerporation (the “Company”), hereby certify, puasuto Section 906 of the Sarbar@sley
Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 that to my kieulge:

(i) the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Compaaythe year ended June 30, 2015 (the “Report™y fedimplies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(dpmdicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 13&amended; and

(ii) the information contained in the Report faigyesents, in all material respects, the finanmaldition and results of operations of
the Company.

/sl Michael J. Koss

Michael J. Koss

Chief Executive Officer and President
August 27, 2015

Note: This certification accompanies the Reporspant to Section 906 of the SarbeOxley Act of 2002 and shall not be deemed filed,

except to the extent required by the Sarbanes-Oxi¢pf 2002, by the Company for purposes of Secli8 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.



Exhibit 32.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 8002,
18 U.S.C. Section 1350

I, David D. Smith, Chief Financial Officer of KoSorporation (the “Company”), hereby certify, punstiio Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 that to my kieulge:

(i) the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Compaaythe year ended June 30, 2015 (the “Report™y fedimplies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(dpmdicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 13&amended; and

(ii) the information contained in the Report faigyesents, in all material respects, the finanmaldition and results of operations of
the Company.

/sl David D. Smith

David D. Smith

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
August 27, 2015

Note: This certification accompanies the Reporspant to Section 906 of the Sarbe-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not be deemed filed,

except to the extent required by the Sarbanes-Oxi¢pf 2002, by the Company for purposes of Secli8 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.



